CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FINANCIAL HEALTH OF DEPOSIT MONEY BANKS IN NIGERIA

BY

Temidayo Omowumi DUROSINMI

B.Sc. ECONOMICS (CARITAS UNIVERSITY)

16/27/MFI004

BEING A DISSERTATION SUBMITTED AND PRESENTED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCE, COLLEGE OF HUMANITIES, MANAGEMENT AND SOCIAL SCIENCES, KWARA STATE UNIVERSITY, MALETE, NIGERIA IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE AWARD OF MASTER OF SCIENCE (M.Sc.) DEGREE IN FINANCE

SUPERVISOR: PROF A. R. ONAOLAPO

OCTOBER, 2019.

ProQuest Number: 27743041

All rights reserved

INFORMATION TO ALL USERS

The quality of this reproduction is dependent on the quality of the copy submitted.

In the unlikely event that the author did not send a complete manuscript and there are missing pages, these will be noted. Also, if material had to be removed, a note will indicate the deletion.



ProQuest 27743041

Published by ProQuest LLC (2020). Copyright of the Dissertation is held by the Author.

All Rights Reserved.

This work is protected against unauthorized copying under Title 17, United States Code Microform Edition © ProQuest LLC.

ProQuest LLC 789 East Eisenhower Parkway P.O. Box 1346 Ann Arbor, MI 48106 - 1346

CERTIFICATION

This is to certify that this dissertation by Temidayo Omowumi DUROSINMI with Matriculation number 16/27/MFI009 titled "Capital Structure and Financial Health of Deposit Money Banks in Nigeria" has been read and approved as meeting the requirements of the Department of Accounting and Finance and Postgraduate School of Kwara University, Malete, Nigeria for the award of Master of Science (M.Sc.) Degree in Finance Prof A.R. Onaolapo Date (Project Supervisor) Dr. Sanni Mubaraq Date (Co. Supervisor) Dr. Sanni Mubaraq Date (Head of Department) Dean, School of Post Graduate Studies Date (Internal Examiner) Date

Date

(External Examiner)

DECLARATION

I, Temidayo Omowumi DUROSINMI declare that this is a r	record of research work	
carried out by me at the Department of Accounting and Finance	, College of Humanities	
Management and Social Science, Kwara State University, Malete	e, Nigeria. To the best of	
my knowledge the said report has not been submitted for any d	legree or examination in	
any other University. All quotations are distinguished by qu	uotation marks and the	
sources of information are acknowledged by means of references.		
Temidayo Omowumi DUROSINMI D	ate	

DEDICATION

This project is dedicated to Almighty God for His mercies and wisdom given to me to endure this great task.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

All glory and praises solemnly due to Almighty God, the most Beneficent and the most Merciful, for his blessings and mercies for making me a triumphant in this my Academic Journey. My profound gratitude goes to my supervisor Prof. A.R. Onaolapo, for his support and tactfulness, who despite his tight schedule still created time to scrutinize my Thesis and guide me to ensure good quality of this research work. My gratitude equally goes to my Parent Barrister and Mrs O.A. Durosinmi, my husband (Mr Dairo Oluwafemi) for their love and support spiritually, morally and financially towards the successful accomplishment.

My appreciation also goes to all my lecturers in Accounting and Finance department, especially the HOD and PG coordinator Dr. Sanni Mubaraq and specifically Dr. Ebenezer Olubiyi, Prof. Mathew Odedokun, Prof. Lanre Nassar, Prof. Kenneth J. Adeyemi, Prof. Akeem O. Salami Dr. Musa Biala, Dr. Adeoye, and Prof. Ijaya among many others for their encouragement and being a model for protégé of emerging Financial analyst like us, may God continue to bless you and increase your strength in all ramification.

I equally appreciate the love, prayer and support of my Siblings and others for their encouragement during this research work. I cannot but equally appreciate the support of my good friends, Majeed, Alfa Yusuf, Sherif, Tosho, Dolapo, Taofeeq, Aishat, Fatimah, Mr Shola and others, may Almighty God reward you all. Finally, I say a very big thanks to my Department, school of Postgraduate studies and Kwara State University Malete at large for giving me the opportunity to fulfill my dreams.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Pages
TITLE PAGE		i
ATTESTATION		ii
CERTIFICATION		iii
DEDICATION		iv
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS		v
TABL	TABLE OF CONTENTS	
ABST	ABSTRACT	
CHAI	PTER ONE: INTRODUCTION	
1.1	Background to the Study	1
1.2	Statement of the Problem	4
1.3	Research Questions	5
1.4	Objectives of the Study	5
1.5	Research of Hypotheses	6
1.6	Justification for the Study	6
1.7	Scope of the Study	8
CHAI	PTER TWO: LITERATURE REVIEW	
2.1	Conceptual Review	9
2.1.1	Concept of Capital Structure	9
2.1.2	Determinant of Capital Structure	11
2.1.3	Measures of bank financial health	13
2.1.4	Definition of Variables	13
2.2	Theoretical Review	17

2.2.1	Static trade off theory of capital structure	17
2.2.2	The dynamic trade off theory of capital structure	18
2.2.3	Net Operating income of capital structure	19
2.2.4	Pecking Order Theory of Capital Structure	20
2.3	Empirical Review	22
2.3.1	Evidence on Developed Countries	22
2.3.2	Evidence on Developing Counties	23
2.3.3	Evidence on Nigeria	25
2.4	Summary and Gap identified in Literature	27
2.5	Theoretical framework	28
СНА	PTER THREE: METHODOLOGY	
3.1	Research Design	29
3.2	Study Population and Sample size	29
3.3	Method of Data Collection	30
3.4	Model Specifications	30
3.4.1	A priori expectation	32
3.5	Method of Data Analysis	33
3.6	Measurement of Variable	33
СНАН	PTER FOUR: DATA PRESENTATION AND ANALYSIS.	
4.1	Descriptive statistics	35
4.2	Pairwise correlation	39
4.3	Regression Analysis	41
4.3.1	Capital structure and capital adequacy ratio of Nigerian Deposit Money B	ank
		41

4.3.2	3.2 Capital structure and Assets Quality of selected Nigerian deposit money banks			
		44		
4.3.3	Capital structure and earnings of selected Nigerian deposit money banks	47		
4.3.4	Capital structure and liquidity of selected Nigerian deposit money banks	50		
4.3.5 Capital structure and Sensitivity of selected Nigerian deposit money Banks		53		
4.4	Discussion of findings	56		
CHAPTER FIVE: SUMMARY CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION				
5.1	Summary	59		
5.2	Conclusion	60		
5.3	Recommendations	61		
5.4.	Contributions to Knowledge	62		
5.5	Limitation and Delimitation of the study	62		
5.6	Suggestions for further studies	63		
Refere	ences	64		

LIST OF TABLES

Table 3.1	Measurement of Variables	34
Table 4.1	Descriptive Statistics of the Variables	36
Table 4.2.	Pairwise correlation	39
Table 4.3	Hausman specification test	42
Table 4.4	Panel data regression results (Random Effects)	44
Table 4.5	Hausman specification test	45
Table 4.6	Panel data regression results (Random Effects)	47
Table 4.7	Hausman specification test	48
Table 4.8	Panel data regression results (Random Effects)	50
Table 4.9	Hausman specification test	51
Table 4.10	Panel data regression results (Fixed Effect)	53
Table 4.11	Hausman specification test	54
Table 4.12	Panel data regression results (Random Effects)	56

ABSTRACT

Despite years of empirical research, the linkage between capital structure and banks financial health remains controversial among the researchers and scholars. Against this background, this study examines the effect of capital structure on the financial health of deposit money banks in Nigeria. The specific objectives are to: examine the extent to which debt ratios influence financial health of selected deposit money banks in Nigeria; investigate the influence of shareholders fund on financial health, and examine the relationship between financial leverage and financial health of deposit money banks in Nigerian. The financial health of the bank was proxied using capital adequacy, asset quality, earning, liquidity and sensitivity, while ratio of equity to debt, total debt to total capital proxied capital structure. Descriptive research design was used and sample of ten (10) deposit money banks were randomly selected out of twenty four licensed deposit money banks in Nigeria. The study used descriptive statistics, pairwise correlation and panel data regression technique to analyze the secondary data extracted from the audited financial statements of the selected banks over eight (8) years period from 2010 to 2017. The study revealed that (i) debt ratio has a negative impact on the financial health (ii) shareholders fund influenced positive financial health positively while a significant negative relationship was found to exist between leverage and the financial health of deposit money banks in Nigeria all at 1% level of significance. Consequently, the study concludes that capital structure plays a significant role on the financial health of deposit money banks in Nigeria. The negative impacts also suggest that the legislative rules and policies have to be designed in such a way to assist firms in sharply reducing the reliance on too much use of debt. The study therefore recommends that financial managers should try to finance from retained earnings rather than relying heavily on debt capital in their capital structure.

CHAPTER ONE

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background to the Study

The banking sector is very crucial and plays a major role in the economic growth and development of any nation. Although various monetary policies are implemented in the banking sector due to its importance, efforts are being made by regulatory agencies to ensure its safety and soundness. In order to achieve this, the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) usually comes out with various policies to ensure that banks continue to achieve the desired goals of all stakeholders. Among these policies is to ensure that debt to equity ratio (capital structure) of deposit money banks is in consonance with CBN requirements.

One of the primary objectives of most of the quoted companies is to ensure that they satisfy all the stakeholders involved in the business. These often makes managers of firms to develop various strategies that will help them to make the most appropriate financing and investment decisions that will aid the realization of the firm's objectives. In making financing decision, one of the priorities of the manager is to ensure that the firm adopts a healthy financing means or capital structure by all possible means (Ogebe, Joseph & Alewi, 2013).

The Firm capital structure decision is considered as the framework which depicts how equity and debt are employed for financing the firm operations (Dada & Ghazali, 2016). Capital can be derived from two main sources; these sources are internal and external sources. The internal source refers to the funds generated from within an enterprise which is mostly the retained earnings. Firms may in the same vein look outside to source for their needed funds to enhance their activities. Any fund sourced not from within the operation of the organization are termed external financing. The external funding may be

obtained by increasing the number of co-owners of a business or outright borrowing in form of loan (Eniola, Adewunmi & Akinselure, 2017)

According to Saeed (2013), one crucial issue confronting managers today is how to choose the combination of debt and equity to achieve optimum capital structure that would minimize costs and maximize return to the banks shareholders. Capital structure denotes the mode of financing usually a blend of loan and equity capital, through which banks are financed. Capital structure decision is fundamental for any business organization including banks because of its need to maximize returns to the various stakeholders and also because of the fact that such decision has great impact on the bank's ability to deal with competitive environment (Awunyo & Badu, 2012).

Sadiq, Kachollon, Dasuki and Yusuf (2017) posited that capital is essentially the lifeblood of any business activity. In fact, it serves as catalyst in establishing and promoting business firms. It plays a very sensitive role especially in a country like Nigeria. Lessons from banking history reveal that most Deposit Money Banks collapsed as a result of inadequate, mismanagement or lack of capital. Therefore, financing decision is one of the crucial areas as they are concerned with the determination of the best financing mix and combination of debts and equity for deposit money banks. The effective management of capital structure ensures the availability of required fund to finance the future growth and enhance the financial performance of the banks. Gitman (2009) emphasizes that capital structure policy is concerned with the optimal combination of the use of external and internal sources of funds to finance an investment and also to support the banks operations in an effort to increase its profits and achieve a higher value.

It is important to have optimal combination of funds from internal and external sources in banks Capital Structure to avoid excessive leveraged in banks, this is because an unduly high level of debt with maximum debt finance in Capital Structure profile may result in the bank finding its freedom of action restricted by its creditors and thereby have its profitability affected with the payment of higher interest costs. Furthermore, one of the major objectives of a firm generally is to maximize the wealth of owners or shareholders of the firm. The wealth of shareholders in turn is defined as the current price of the firm's outstanding shares.

According to Goyal (2013), wealth is consistently maximized when profits are realized from operations. In banking industry, profits are realized from loans and advances granted to the customers. This is in line with the financial intermediation role which deposit money banks play in transforming deposits into financial assets; they also channel funds from entities with surplus liquidity to those with deficit liquidity thereby facilitating capital formation and trade.

Bank profitability measurement according to the European Central Bank (2010) can be categorized into three major classes amongst which are traditional, economic and market based measures. The traditional measures are similar to those used by other firms which include Return on Assets (ROA) which is the net income for the year divided by the total assets. The other measure is Return of Equity (ROE) which is the internal performance measure of shareholder's value and this is the most famous measure of financial performance. The Economic measures of performance aim at assessing the economic results generated by the bank from its economic assets.

Kuria (2013) posited the market based measures depend on the way the capital market value the performance of firm as compared to its economic and accounting value. This study however examines the impact of Capital Structure on the financial health of deposit money banks in Nigeria, using Capital Adequacy (C), Asset Quality (A),

Earnings (E), Liquidity (L) and Sensitivity (S) (CAELS) as an abridge form of CAMELS rating to measure financial health of money deposit banks.

1.2 Statement of the Problem

Financial ill Health of Deposit Money Banks has been identified as the outcome of distress, illiquidity, lopsided capital structure and poor management. The most crucial among these challenges is the capital base which has informed the Central Bank of Nigeria to reel out various policies to ensure that adequate capital is maintained by Deposit Money Banks knowing what this has to do with banks' profitability and ultimately banks' value. In complying with the CBN's directives, deposit money banks raise additional capital through issue of shares and borrowing, but the bone of contention is how to choose the combination of debt and equity to achieve optimum Capital Structure that would minimize costs and maximize return of the shareholders.

In Nigeria, investors and stakeholders appear not to have a detailed effect of capital structure in measuring their firm's performance as they may assume that attributions of capital structure are not related to their firms value. Indeed, a well attribution of capital structure will lead to the success of firms. Hence, the issues of capital structure, which may influence the corporate performance of Nigerian firms, have to be resolved.

However, researchers such as Hailu (2015) observed that aside return on asset, return on equity, net interest margin, earning per share, other factors that measure the financial health of a bank includes capital adequacy ratio, asset quality ratio, banks earning, banks liquidity and banks sensitivity. Acknowledging various researchers such as Goyal (2013); Aragraw (2015); Ihenetu, Iwo, and Ebiware (2016) that have written on this crucial topic globally, little have been done in Nigeria, and those research conducted in Nigeria focused more on the manufacturing sector. Against this background, this study

aims at adding to the empirical evidences in Nigeria by examining the impact of capital structure on the financial health of money deposit banks in Nigeria.

1.3 Research Question

Following the problems raised the following research questions were formulated for this study:

- i. To what extent does Debt Ratio affect Capital Adequacy of deposit money banks in Nigeria?
- ii. What is the relationship between Debt Ratio on Asset Quality of deposit money banks in Nigeria?
- iii. What is the effect of Debt Ratio on Earning Power of deposit money banks in Nigeria?
- iv. What is the influence of Debt Ratios on Liquidity Sufficiency of deposit money banks in Nigeria?
- v. To what extend does Debt Ratio affect Sensitivity of deposit money banks in Nigeria?

1.4 Objectives of the Study

The general objective of this study is to examine the impact of capital structure on the financial health of deposit money bank in Nigeria. While the specific objectives include to:

- examine the extent to which debt ratio of deposit money banks in Nigeria affects it capital adequacy.
- ii. Investigate the influence of debt ratio on asset quality of deposit money banks in Nigeria
- iii. Evaluate the effect of debt ratio on earning power of deposit money banks in Nigeria

- iv. Determine the influence of debt ratio on liquidity sufficiency of deposit money banks in Nigeria
- v. examine the effect of debt ratio on the sensitivity of deposit money banks in Nigeria

1.5 Research Hypotheses

The following research hypotheses are formulated for the study:

H_{O1}: Debt Ratios does not have significant effect on the capital adequacy of deposit money banks in Nigeria

H_{O2}: Debt Ratios does not have significant influence on the asset quality of deposit money banks in Nigeria

 H_{03} Debt Ratios does not have significant effect on the earning power of deposit money banks in Nigeria

 H_{04} Debt Ratios does not have significant influence on the liquidity sufficiency of deposit money banks in Nigeria

H₀₅ Debt Ratio does not have significant effect on the sensitivity of deposit money banks in Nigeria.

1.6 Justification for the Study

The impact of capital structure on the financial performance of deposit money banks has attracted the attention of many researchers both locally and globally. The study, which is largely foreign based, have however revealed conflicting findings. In Nigeria, most of the studies for example Bello and Onyesom (2005), Salawu (2007), Olokoyo (2012), Babalola (2012), Yinusa and Babalola (2012), Sabastian and Rapuluchukwu (2012) and Idode, Adeleke, Ogunlowo and Ashogbon (2014) did not consider financial health of banks as a cognizant yadstic of measuring bank performance. It can also be observed that

most of the studies were done in the developed markets and more studies needed to have been done in the emerging markets like Nigeria.

More so, the study on the relationship between capital structure and deposit money bank financial health in Nigeria context is closed to none perhaps it cannot be overemphasized due to its cognizant representation in both the floor of Nigeria Stock Exchange and in the country financial sector. This research work sought to bridge these gaps as it would contribute to the existing body of knowledge.

It is the hope that the result of this study will also be beneficial to both internal and external parties (i.e managers in maximizing investors returns, owners in making an informed decision, creditors/depositors in ascertaining credit worthiness of banks and how liquid a bank is government in making favorable financing through central bank and other financial sectors regulators policies etc) to improve on the GDP contribution by the financial sector and also improve on employment rate once the sector is viable since the stakeholders are interested in knowing the impact of such decisions on bank performance.

Also, the government and its agencies will somehow benefit from this study because the study will highlight the need from its findings if necessary for the government to formulate more favorable financial and economic guidelines as the sector demands and this will sustain the operations of Nigerian deposit money Banks, especially the potential banks yet to be licensed by central bank and resultantly contributing to GDP of the nation which have been on the decline hitherto.

The results of this study would also be of benefit to managers, shareholders and depositors/creditors of banks in Nigeria. Managers would be placed on a sound footing to understand the effect of various financing mix on the operations of their banks.

Shareholders would be able to make an informed decision with regard to their equity interest in relation to the debt financing options available to their firms, while depositors would be able to identify the banks that are financially liquid enough to settle their withdrawal as and when demanded for. The research will also be of immense benefit to the prospective researcher who are willing to carry out a related research work.

1.7 Scope of the Study

This study examines the impact of capital structure of deposit money banks in Nigeria. This study is however limited to ten (10) Deposit Money Banks in Nigeria based on 2017 Fitch rating of top 10 viable banks in Nigeria, and the data set is limited from 2010 to 2017. This is because in 2010, the Asset Management Corporation of Nigeria (AMCON) was established following the promulgation of its enabling Act by the National Assembly. It is a special purpose vehicle aimed at addressing the problem of non-performing loans in the Nigerian banking industry, among others. In line with its mandate, AMCON recently acquired the non-performing risk assets of some banks worth over N1.7 trillion, which is expected to boost their liquidity as well as enhance their safety and soundness. With the intervention of AMCON, the banking industry ratio of non-performing loans to total credit has significantly reduced from 34.4 per cent in November 2010 to 4.95 per cent as at December 2011. This research will be restricted to investigating the effect of debt financing on financial health of deposit money banks in Nigeria using the CAELS approach.

CHAPTER TWO

LITERATURE REVIEW

This chapter review and evaluate various documents with a view to providing orientation, focused ideas and current account of literature relevant to this research. The chapter thus presents the conceptual clarification, theoretical background, empirical studies and gaps identified in literature.

2.1 Conceptual Review

The conceptual review discuss the Overview of Capital Structure, Determinants of Capital Structure, Measures of bank financial health, and others topics related to the concept of Capital Structure and Financial Health of Deposit Money Banks.

2.1.1 Concept of Capital Structure

Under favorable economic conditions, the financial performance increase with financial leverage. But leverage also increases the financial risk of shareholders. As a result, it cannot be stated definitely whether or not the firm's value will increase with leverage (Mathewos, 2016). According to Shaba, Yaaba, Abubakah (2016), number of Deposit Money Banks (DMBs) that also diversified their capital structure is on the decrease. While the total number of Banks reduced from 89 to 25, shareholders' funds grew from an average of sixty-two billion naira (N62bn) to seventy-three billion naira (N73bn). Conversely, borrowed funds plummeted from an average of sixty-five billion naira (N65bn) in 2004 to forty-seven billion naira (N47bn) in 2005. Consequently, the regulatory capital requirement affected mainly the shareholders' funds and by implication tied down a sizeable component of these funds. (CBN, 2015).

Thus, in most cases, owners of banks resorted to borrowed funds to finance their activities. With the increase in owners' funds, the CBN adjusted the regulatory capital

requirements of banks such that Tier 1 for instance, increased from 8.0 per cent as provided by the Basel II Accord to 10.0 per cent for banks that operate within Nigeria. Whilst Banks that have international presence where required to have Tier 1 capital at 15.0 per cent, the systemically important banks were urged to keep Tier 1 capital at 16.0 per cent (CBN, 2010).

The change in the capital structure as well as prudent regulatory capital requirement notwithstanding, some of the DMBs still experienced liquidity squeeze in 2009 leading to intervention by the CBN. The CBN injected six hundred and twenty billion naira (N620bn) into 3 banks (Platinum Habib Bank Plc, Afribank Bank Plc& Spring Bank Plc) in form of Tier 2 capital and thereafter nationalized them. The intervention was considered as the saving grace for the affected banks. However, it is imperative that the players (DMBs) determine the most optimal financing mix which minimizes the cost of financing as well as maximizes returns for the banks. Shaba *et al* (2016).

Empirical evidence from previous studies seems to be consistent with the pecking order theory. Most studies found a negative relationship between profitability and capital structure Friend and Lang, (1988); Chittenden, 1996; Michaelas, (1999) and Hall (2004) also suggest negative relationships between profitability and both long-term debt and short-term debt ratios. Also consistent with the pecking order theory, work of Titman and Wessel (1988), Rajan and Zingales (1995), Antoniou, (2002) in developed countries, Booth, (2001), Pandey (2001), and Chen (2004), in developing countries all find a negative relationship between leverage ratios and profitability. We therefore propose based on the pecking order theory that a negative relationship exist between profitability and leverage. Thus it is expected that leverage level of Nigerian commercial banks is significantly negatively related to the profitability

2.1.2 The Determinants of Capital Structure

Empirical studies have identified firm-level characteristics that affect the capital structure of firms. Among these characteristics are age of the firm, size of the firm, asset structure, profitability, growth, firm risk, tax and ownership structure. Age of the firm serves as a standard measure of reputation in capital structure models. As a firm continues longer in business, it establishes itself as an ongoing business and therefore increases its capacity to take on more debt; hence age is positively related to debt. Before granting a loan, banks tend to evaluate the creditworthiness of entrepreneurs as these are generally believed to pin high hopes on very risky projects promising high profitability. Petersen and Rajan (1994) found that older firms should have higher debt ratios since they should be higher quality firms. Hall *et al.* (2004) agreed that age is positively related to long-term debt but negatively related to short-term debt. Esperança*et al.* (2003), however, found that age is negatively related to both long-term and short-term debt. Green, Murinde and Suppakitjarak (2002) also found that age has a negative influence on the probability of incurring debt in the initial capital equation, and no impact in the additional capital equation.

Larger firms are more diversified and hence have lower variance of earnings, making them able to tolerate high debt ratios (Castanias, 1983; Titman and Wessels, 1988; Wald, 1999). Smaller firms, on the other hand, may find it relatively more costly to resolve information asymmetries with lenders. Thus, may present lower debt ratios (Castanias, 1983). Lenders to larger firms are more likely to get repaid than lenders to smaller firms, reducing the agency costs associated with debt. Therefore, larger firms will have higher debts. Empirical evidence on the relationship between size and capital structure supports a positive relationship.

In addition, the degree to which the firm's assets are tangible should result in the firm having greater liquidation value (Titman and Wessels, (1988); Harris and Raviv, (1991). Bradley *et al.* (1984) assert that firms that invest heavily in tangible assets also have higher financial leverage since they borrow at lower interest rates if their debt is secured with such assets. It is believed that debt may be more readily used if there are durable assets to serve as collateral (Wedig*et al.*, 1988). Booth *et al.* (2001) suggest that the relationship between tangible fixed assets and debt financing is related to the maturity structure of the debt. In such a situation, the level of tangible fixed assets may help firms to obtain more long-term debt, but the agency problems may become more severe with the more tangible fixed assets, because the information revealed about future profit is less in these firms. If this is the case, then it is likely to find a negative relationship between tangible fixed assets and debt ratio.

Furthermore, the relationship between firm profitability and capital structure can be explained by the pecking order theory (POT) discussed above, which holds that firms prefer internal sources of finance to external sources. The order of the preference is from the one that is least sensitive (and least risky) to the one that is most sensitive (and most risky) that arise because of asymmetric information between corporate insiders and less well informed market participants (Myers, 1984). By this token, profitable firms with access to retained profits can rely on them as opposed to depending on outside sources (debt). Murinde*et al.* (2004) observe that retentions are the principal source of finance. Titman and Wessels (1988) and Barton *et al.* (1989) agree that firms with high profit rates, all things being equal, would maintain relatively lower debt ratios since they are able to generate such funds from internal sources.

2.1.3 Measures of Bank Financial Health

There are several measures of bank financial health cited by Ndifo and Ubana (2014) among which are Net Interest Margin (NIM), Return On Assets (ROA) and Return on Equity (ROE). The Nigeria deposit insurance corporation (NDIC) adopt the CAMEL rating to promote the safety and soundness of financial institution through on-going evaluation and monitoring, including the assessment of risk management system, financial conditions and compliance with laws and regulations. The supervising agencies cannot effectively deal with systemic banking crisis without an in-depth knowledge of the condition of the bank they supervise.

However, there are divergent views among scholars on the superiority of one indicator over the other as a good measure of profitability in banks. Similarly, anyone or a combination of the indicators can be used to measure profitability in banks depending on the objective of the user or analyst. If the objective is to measure how profitable and efficient the management of a bank is in using the bank's total assets to generate income, Return on Assets (ROA) becomes the most vital indicator to employ.

The study adopted Return On Assets (ROA) as a measure of profitability in banks because ROE measures how profitable and efficient the management of a bank is using the bank's total equities in generating income Profitability ratio as a measure of profitability, which is a company's performance. Profitability is simply the capacity to make a profit, and a profit is what is left over from income earned after you have deducted all cost and expenses related to earning the income.

2.1.4 Definition of Variables

Capital Adequacy (C): Capital adequacy is a measure of the financial strength of a bank, usually express as a ratio of its shareholders" fund to total assets. The ratio reflects the ability of a bank to withstand the unanticipated losses. This ratio has a positive

relationship with the financial soundness of the bank. According to Misra and Aspal (2013) Capital adequacy has come forth as one of the prominent indicators of the financial health of a banking system. It is very useful for a bank to conserve & protect stakeholders' confidence and preventing the bank from being bankrupt. It reflects whether the bank has enough capital to bear unexpected losses arising in the future.

Asset Quality (A) Asset quality is an important measure of the strength of banks. The ratio of non-performing loans and advances as a share of total and advances is considered for the purpose of analysis. In addition, the ratio of total loans and advances to total assets is utilized to measure the extent of deployment of assets in earning assets. According to Gupta (2014) Asset quality determines the healthiness of financial institutions against loss of value in the assets as asset impairment risks the solvency of the financial institutions. The weakening value of assets has a spill over effect, as losses are eventually written-off against capital, which eventually expose the earning capacity of the institution. With this framework, the asset quality is assessed with respect to the level and severity of non-performing assets, adequacy of provisions, distribution of assets etc.

Management Quality (M) The capacity/efficiency of the management of a bank can be measured with the help of certain ratios. To capture the possible dynamics of management efficiency, the following ratios are considered: total loans and advances to total deposits, interest expenses to total deposits, and operating expenses to total assets. According to Echekoba, Egbunike and Ezu (2014), Management quality or efficiency plays a big role in determining the future of the bank. The management has an overview of a bank's operations, manages the quality of loans and has to ensure that the bank is profitable. The performance of management capacity is usually qualitative and can be understood through the subjective evaluation of management systems, organization

culture, and control mechanisms and so on. However, the capacity of the management of a bank can also be gauged with the help of certain ratios of off-site evaluation of a bank in the capacity of the management to deploy its resources aggressively to maximize the income, utilize the facilities in the bank productively and reduce costs.

Earnings Ability (E) According to Adeshina (2014) two ratios are used to assess the earnings ability of the banks under study. The first ratio is the net income to total assets or "ROA". The second ratio used is interest income to total assets. The two ratios have positive relationship with the financial performance of the bank and negative relationship to the risk of bank failure. According to Lliana, Mihail and Evangelos (2015) earning ability reflects the profitability of the bank in relation to the total assets, while it also shows how a bank manages its assets to achieve profits. The higher the ratio, the better the efficiency of the bank's assets, therefore the more efficient the management of its assets.

Liquidity (L) Two ratios are employed in this study to assess the liquidity level of the banks. The first one is total liquid assets to total assets. The second ratio is liquid assets to customers" deposits. According to Golam (2014) liquidity ratio is the ability of a bank to provide liquidity required for the existence of a highly liquid and readily transferable stock of financial assets. Liquidity and transferability are the key ingredients for such transactions. The liquidity requirement means that financial assets must be available to owners on short notice (a day or less) at par.

Sensitivity

Sensitivity to market risk is defined by regulators as the degree to which changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices or equity prices can adversely affect a bank's earnings and, in turn, its financial health.

Short term debt ratio

A short-term debt ratio indicates the likelihood that a company will be able to deliver payments on its outstanding short-term liabilities. Short-term debts include liabilities with a repayment time frame of less than one year from initial issue (such as commercial paper) rather than the sum of all debt payments (final and interim) due within a coming 12-month period. Short term debt, also called current liabilities, is a firm's financial obligations that are expected to be paid off within a year. It is listed under the current liabilities portion of the total liabilities section of a company's balance sheet.

Long term debt ratio

The long-term debt ratio is a solvency or coverage ratio that calculates a company's leverage by comparing total debt to assets. In other words, it measures the percentage of assets that a business would need to liquidate to pay off its long-term debt. The long-term debt-to-total-assets ratio is a measurement representing the percentage of a corporation's assets financed with long-term debt, which encompasses loans or other debt obligations lasting more than one year. This ratio provides a general measure of the long-term financial position of a company, including its ability to meet its financial obligations for outstanding loans.

Debt to equity ratio

The debt-to-equity ratio is a measure of the relationship between the capital contributed by creditors and the capital contributed by shareholders. The ratio is used to evaluate a company's financial leverage. It is a measure of the degree to which a company is financing its operations through debt versus wholly-owned funds. More specifically, it reflects the ability of shareholder equity to cover all outstanding debts in the event of a business downturn.

2.2 Theoretical Review

A number of theories have been advanced in explaining the capital structure and profitability/ value of firms. The existing theories of capital structures and profitability/ to be reviewed include:

2.2.1 Static Trade off Theory of Capital Structure

The trade-off theory of capital structure is the idea that a company chooses how much debt finance and how much equity finance to be used by balancing the costs and benefits. The classical version of the hypothesis goes back to Kraus and Litzenberger (1973) who considered a balance between the dead-weight costs of bankruptcy and the tax saving benefits of debt. Often agency costs are also included in the balance.

The trade-off theory says that the firm will borrow up to the point where the marginal value of tax shields on additional debt is just offset by the increase in the present value of possible cost of financial distress. The value of the firm will decrease because of financial distress (Myers, 2001). According to the study, financial distress refers to:" the costs of bankruptcy or reorganization, and also to the agency costs that arise when the firm's creditworthiness is in doubt". The trade-off theory weights the benefits of debt that result from shielding cash flows from taxes against the costs of financial distress associated with leverage. "According to this theory, the total value of a levered firm equals the value of the firm without leverage plus present value tax savings from debt, less the present value of financial distress costs"

The trade-off theory of capital structure states that a firm's choice of its debt – equity ratio is a trade-off between its interest tax shields and the costs of financial distress. The theory further suggests that firms in the same industry should have similar or identical debt ratios in order to maximize tax savings. The tax benefit among other factors makes the after-tax cost of debt lower and hence the weighted average cost of capital will also

be lower. This theory allows bankruptcy cost to exist. It states that there is an advantage to financing with debt (the tax benefits of debt) and that there is a cost of financing with debt (the bankruptcy costs and the financial distress costs of debt). The marginal benefit of further increases in debt declines as debt increases, while the marginal cost increases, so that a firm that is optimizing its overall value will focus on this trade -off when choosing how much debt and equity to use for financing (Modigliani and Miller (1963). Furthermore, Brigham and Gapenski (1996) argue that an optimal capital structure can be obtained if there exist tax benefit which is equal to the bankruptcy cost. It can be concluded that, there is an optimal capital structure where the weighted average cost of capital is at its minimum. However, as a firm leverage ratio rises, tax benefits will eventually be offset by increases bankruptcy cost. The trade-off theory sought to establish an optimal capital structure where the weighted average cost of capital will be minimized and the firm value maximized. At the optimal level of capital structure, tax benefit will be equal to bankruptcy costs. Despite the theoretical appeal of debt financing, researchers of capital structure have not found the optimal capital structure (Simerly and Li, 2002).

2.2.2 The Dynamic Trade-off Theory of Capital Structure

Constructing models that recognize the role of time requires specifying a number of aspects that are typically ignored in a single-period model. Of particular importance are the roles of expectations and adjustment costs. In a dynamic model, the correct financing decision typically depends on the financing margin that the firm anticipates in the next period. Some firms expect to pay out funds in the next period, while others expect to raise funds. If funds are to be raised, they may take the form of debt or equity. More generally, a firm undertakes a combination of these actions.

An important precursor to modern dynamic trade-off theories was Stiglitz (1973), who examines the effects of taxation from a public finance perspective. Stiglitz's model is not a trade-off theory since he took the drastic step of assuming away uncertainty. The first dynamic models to consider the tax savings versus bankruptcy cost trade-off are Kane *et al.* (1984) and Brennan and Schwartz (1984). Both analyzed continuous time models with uncertainty, taxes, and bankruptcy costs, but no transaction costs. Since firms react to adverse shocks immediately by rebalancing costless, firms maintain high levels of debt to take advantage of the tax savings.

Dynamic trade-off models can also be used to consider the option values embedded in deferring leverage decisions to the next period. Goldstein *et al.* (2001) observe that a firm with low leverage today has the subsequent option to increase leverage. Under their assumptions, the option to increase leverage in the future serves to reduce the otherwise optimal level of leverage today. Strebulaev (2007) analyzed a model quite similar to that of Fischer *et al.* (1989); Goldstein *et al.* (2001). Again, if firms optimally finance only periodically because of transaction costs, then the debt ratios of most firms will deviate from the optimum most of the time. In the model, the firm's leverage responds less to short-run equity fluctuations and more to long-run value changes.

2.2.3 Net Operating Income Theory of Capital Structure

According to this theory, the value of a company isn't impacted by the alteration of debt in the capital structure. It assumes that the gain which a company gets by infusion of debt is negated by the rise in the required rate of return by the stockholders. With rise in debt, the bankruptcy risk also increases and such a risk perception increases the expectations of the equity holders.

This theory as suggested by Durand (1968) is another extreme of the effect of leverage on the value of the firm. It is diametrically opposite to the net income approach. As

posited by Kareem (2012) net operating income theory showcase that change in the capital structure of a company does not affect the market value of the firm and the overall cost of capital remains constant irrespective of the method of financing. It implies that the overall cost of capital remains the same whether the debt-equity mix is 50: 50 or 20:80 or 0:100. Thus, there is nothing as an optimal capital structure and every capital structure is the optimum capital structure.

The reasons propounded for such assumptions is that the increased use of debt increases the financial risk of the equity shareholders and hence the cost of equity increases. On the other hand, the cost of debt remains constant with the increasing proportion of debt as the financial risk of the lenders is not affected. Thus, the advantage of using the cheaper source of funds, i.e., debt is exactly offset by the increased cost of equity. Salado (2002) to the Net Operating Income (NOI) Approach, the financing mix is irrelevant and it does not affect the value of the firm.

2.2.4 Pecking Order Theory of Capital Structure

Pecking order theory was first suggested by Donaldson in 1961 and it was modified by Stewart Myers and Nicolas Majluf in 1984. It states that companies prioritize their sources of financing (from internal financing to equity) according to the cost of financing, preferring to raise equity as a financing means of last resort. Hence, internal funds are used first, and when that is depleted, debt is issued, and when it is not sensible to issue any more debt, equity is issued.

The pecking order theory is geared towards the signaling effect of the use of debt financing. According to the pecking order theory firms prefer financing their operations from internally generated funds, because the use of such funds does not send any negative signal that may lower the stock price of the firm. If internal finance is required,

firms prefer to issue debt first before considering the issue of equity. The theory tries to capture the costs of asymmetric information. It states that companies prioritize their sources of financing (from internal financing to issuing shares of equity) according to least resistance, preferring to raise equity for financing as a last resort. Internal financing is used first. When that is depleted, debt is issued. When it is no longer sensible to issue any more debt, equity is used.

This theory maintains that businesses adhere to a hierarchy of financing sources and prefer internal financing when available, while debt is preferred over equity if external financing is required. Thus, the form of debt a firm chooses can act as a signal of its need for external finance. This pecking order occurs because issuing debt is less likely to send a negative signal to investors. If a firm should issue equity it sends a negative signal to investors that the firm's share prices are overvalued that is why the managers are issuing equity. This will cause investor to sell their shares leading to a fall in the stock price of the firm. A share issue is thus interpreted by the market as a bad omen but debt is less likely to be interpreted this way. Firms therefore prefer to issue debt rather than equity if internal finance is insufficient. The pecking order theory is therefore a competing theory of capital structure that says firms prefer internal financing.

Empirical evidence from previous studies seems to be consistent with the pecking order theory. Most studies found a negative relationship between profitability and capital structure Friend and Lang, (1988); Chittenden, 1996; Michaelas, (1999) and Hall (2004) also suggest negative relationships between profitability and both long-term debt and short-term debt ratios. Also consistent with the pecking order theory, work of Titman and Wessel (1988), Rajan and Zingales (1995), Antoniou, (2002) in developed countries, Booth, (2001), Pandey (2001), and Chen (2004), in developing countries all find a negative relationship between leverage ratios and profitability. We therefore propose

based on the pecking order theory that a negative relationship exist between profitability and leverage. Thus it is expected that leverage level of Nigerian commercial banks is significantly negatively related to the profitability. The study however underpin the study on pecking other theory

2.3 Empirical Review

In this section, we look at various foreign and local studies which have been carried out by other scholars in this field.

2.3.1 Evidence on Developed Countries

Salim and Yadav (2012) examined the relationship between capital structure and firm performance. The investigation was performed using panel data procedure for a sample of 237 Malaysian listed companies on the Bursa Malaysia Stock exchange during 1995-2011. The study used four performance measures (including Return on Equity (ROE), Return on Asset (ROA), Tobin's Q and Earning Per Share (EPS)) as dependent variable. The five capital structure measure (including Long Term Debt (LTD), Short Term Debt (STD), Total Debt (TD) ratios and growth) as independent variable using firm Size as a control variable. The data are divided into six sectors which are construction, consumer product, industrial product, plantation, property, trading and service. The findings of the study indicates that capital structure (especially TD and STD) negatively impacts performance (ROE). On the other hand capital structure (LTD and TD) has negative significant impact on firm's performance measured by ROA. Furthermore, findings of this study suggest that there is a significantly positive relationship between Tobin's Q (firm performance) and capital structure measured by LTD and STD. Finally, the results show that Tobin Q has a positive and significant relationship with size (as control variable) for all sectors under study except for property sector a negative effect on the Tobin's Q observed.

Also in Malaysia, Muhfuzah and Raj (2012) investigated the relationship between capital structure and firm performance using panel data of 237 Malaysia stock exchange from 1995-2011. The result indicated that firm performance measured by return on Asset, Return on Equity and earning per share have negative relationship with short term debt, long term debt, and total debt. Also, total debt has significant negative relationship with the performance of the firm.

Dilrukshi (2016) investigate the impact of capital structure on firm performance in UK for the period of 1998-2008. The study employ the use of Pearson correlation and multiple regression analysis and findings shows that there is a significant negative relationship between leverage and firm performance, strong negative relationship between liquidity and firm performance and highly significant positive relationship between size and firm performance.

Mouna, Jianmu, Havidz and Ali (2017) investigated the impact of capital structure of firm's performance in Morocco using a panel data obtained from Moroccan authority of capital market and Casablana stock exchange website from the year 2014 to 2016. The result of the study shows that Debt Ratio has a negative significant effect on return on asset and return on equity. The findings also revealed that firm size also has a positive significant impact on return on equity.

2.3.2. Evidence on Developing Counties

Mohammadzadeha *et al.* (2013) in their study scrutinized the relationship between the capital structure and the profitability of pharmaceutical companies in Iran. To meet the purpose of the study, top 30 Iranian pharmaceutical companies defined as study samples and their financial data were gathered for the period of 2001-2010. In their study, the net margin profit and debts to asset ratio were used as indicators of profitability and capital structure, respectively and sales growth was used as a control variable. Results showed

that there was significant negative relationship between the profitability and the capital structure which means that the pharmaceutical companies established a Pecking Order Theory and the internal financing has led to more profitability

Also, Abhtar, Bano, Zia and Jammel (2016) examined the effect of capital structure (debt to equity) on profitability, liquidity, tangibility, interest rate and growth rate to measure performance of banking sector of Pakistan using five banks annual reports between 2005 and 2015. The research work use pooled analysis to summarize the data for correlation and regression. The result shows that there are positive significant relationships between profitability, tangibility, liquidity, interest rate, and growth rate and capital structure.

Furthermore, Madiha and Muhammed (2016) tested the significance of the impact of capital structure on financial Performance of banks listed on Karachi Stock Exchange. The study incorporated financial performance variables as dependent and capital structure (financial structure) as independent. The dependent variables are spread ratio, return on assets and earnings per share and independent variables are total debt to total equity, long-term debt to total equity and short-term debt to total equity. Furthermore, the study incorporated data for five years from 2009 to 2013. The findings showed that capital structure findings are negatively related with banks performance in Pakistan.

Akomeah, Bentil and Musah (2018) examined the effect of firm capital structure decisions on their performance based on a sample of non-financial firms in Ghana over a 7 year period (2010 to 2016). The study employ the use of regression analysis and found that capital structure decisions affect firms' performance significantly. Furthermore, the leverage variables were inversely related to performance, Short-term debt to equity was equally negatively related.

2.3.3. Evidence from Nigeria

Onaolapo and Kojola (2010) examine the impact of capital structure on firms financial performance using sample of thirty non-financial firms listed on the Nigeria stock exchange during 2001 – 2007. The study employed panel data analysis and the findings showed that firms capital structure surrogated by Debt Ratio has a significantly negative impact on the firm's financial measures.

In consistent with the Shubita and Alsawalhah (2012) findings, Chechet and Olayiwola (2014) examined capital structure and profitability of the Nigerian listed firms from the Agency Cost Theory perspective with a sample of seventy (70) out of population of two hundred and forty-five firms listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE) for a period of ten (10) years (2000 - 2009) with the aid of the NSE Fact Book covering the period under review. Panel data for the firms are generated and analyzed using fixed-effects, random-effects and Hausman Chi Square estimations. Two independent variables which served as measure of capital structure were used in the study: Debt Ratio (DR) and Equity over the period (EQT) while Profitability (PROF) as the only dependent variable. The result showed that DR is negatively related with PROF, but EQT is directly related with PROF.

Ndifon and Ubana (2014) assess the impact of capital adequacy on Deposit Money Banks' profitability in Nigeria, taking a case study of five selected banks. The empirical analysis covered the period from 1981 to 2011. The study adopted the Engle and Granger two steps procedure in co-integration. The study revealed that capital adequacy plays an important role in explaining banks Returns on Assets (ROA) which is a measure of banks' profitability. The positive and significant relationship between capital adequacy and banks' profitability suggest that banks with more equity capital are perceived to have

more safety and such advantage can be translated into higher profitability. The higher the capital ratio, the more profitable a bank will be.

Also, Onaolapo, Kajola and Nwidobie (2015) examines the determinants of corporate capital structure of thirty-five firms listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange between 2006 and 2012. Panel data methodology was employed and pooled Ordinary Least Squares was (OLS) used to estimate the coefficients of six firm-specific determinants. Results reveal that the three leverage ratios (Total Leverage Ratio, Long-Term Leverage Ratio and Short-Term Leverage Ratio) are negatively and significantly related with profitability. Firm size and asset tangibility are positively and significantly related with leverage proxies. The study concludes that Nigerian firms rely heavily on the use of retained earnings (internal source) and where funds raised are insufficient, they then seek for external source.

Ihenetu, Iwo and Ebiware (2016) studied the impact of capital structure on the performance of deposit money banks in Nigeria. The focus of the research was to identify the relationship that exist between highly geared capital structure and lowly geared capital structure on performance indices such as return on equity and return on assets. Four (4) banks were used and their audited financial statements analyzed to generate both the dependent and independent variables for twelve years (2002-2013). The statistical tool applied is ordinary least square and the result shows that highly geared capital structure is increases performance of deposit money than lowly geared capital.

Mathewos (2016) also studied the impact of capital structure on financial performance of selected commercial banks in Ethiopia for a five (5) year period from 2011 to 2015 using secondary data collected from financial statements of the commercial banks. Data was analyzed on quantitative approach using multiple regression models. The study used two

accounting-based measures of financial performance (Return on Equity (ROE) and Return on Assets (ROA)) as dependent variable and five capital structure measures (including debt ratio, debt to equity ratio, loan to deposit, bank's size and asset tangibility) as independent variable. The results indicate that financial performance, which is measured by both ROA, is significantly and negatively associated with capital structure proxies such as DER, SIZE and TANG whereas DR have negative impact.

Muritala (2018) examines the optimum level of capital structure through which a firm can increase its financial performance using annual data of ten firms spanning a five-year period. The study employed Panel Least Square (PLS) techniques and found that a negative and significant relationship exist between asset tangibility and ROA as a measure of performance in the model.

2.4 Summary and Gap identified in Literature

In Nigeria, investors and stakeholders appear not to have a detailed effect of capital structure in measuring their firm's performance as they may assume that attributions of capital structure are not related to their firms value. Indeed, a well attribution of capital structure will lead to the success of firms. Hence, the issues of capital structure, which may influence the corporate performance of Nigerian firms, have to be resolved.

The empirical review of the existing literature is a pointer to the fact that numerous researches have been conducted globally in examining the capital structure on the financial health of deposit money banks. In Nigeria, more focus have been on manufacturing sectors and little on financial sector.

However, banking sector due to its major role needs to be further explored. Previously research on banking sector in Nigeria have not examined the effect of debt ratio on financial health using the CAELS approach. It therefore becomes imperative to bridge

the gap observed from previous studies by assessing examining the effect of capital structure on the financial health of deposit money banks using the camel approach.

2.5 Theoretical Framework

The pecking order theory of capital structure shows that if a firm is profitable, then it is more likely that financing would be from internal sources rather than external sources. In other words, firms tend to use internally generated funds first and then resort to external financing. This implies that profitable firms will have less amount of leverage (Myers and Majluf, 1984). By this, profitable firms that have access to retained profits can rely on them as opposed to depending on outside sources (debt). Titman and Wessel (1988) agree that firms with high profit rates would maintain relatively lower debt ratios since they can generate such funds from internal sources.

CHAPTER THREE

METHODOLOGY

In this chapter the methodological approach used to answer the research questions and achieve the objectives of the study is discussed. This chapter covers the research design, the population of study, sample size and sampling techniques, model specification, sources of data and procedure for data collection, research instruments and design and validity of research instrument.

3.1 Research Design

The study employed descriptive research design to explore the relevance of capital structure on the performance of listed deposit money bank in Nigeria. Analysis was based on available annual secondary data collected over the study period (2010-2017). The data related to capital structure and the financial health of listed deposit money bank in Nigeria. Since the study was insight-gaining with emphasis on time patterns and longitudinal performance, the design was deemed appropriate for empirical investigations of the relevance of the capital structure on bank financial health. Thus, the design enhanced detailed analysis of the impact of capital structure on listed deposit money banks in Nigeria and ensured that inferences were drawn from the outcomes of logical sequences.

3.2 Study Population and Samples Size

The population for this study comprises of all the twenty four (24) Deposit Money Banks licensed to operate by the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) as at 2018, this study purposely focus on Deposit Money Banks, considering the fact that they hold the largest portion of financial asset in the economy and has the largest number of retail customers (CBN, 2015). The study sampled ten (10) deposit money banks. However, the choice of

selecting ten out of twenty four deposit money banks was because the banks were listed as the top ten (10) most viable banks as rated by the Fitch Rating of 2017.

3.3 Method of Data Collection

The study employed quantitative research technique to carry out its findings, using secondary data. The data that would be collected is mainly quantitative because information concerning capital structure and firms' performance can easily be obtained from the audited financial reports. The data will be sourced from the Nigeria Stock Exchange (NSE) fact book, audited financial reports of selected banks' (Nigeria listed deposit money banks).

The panel data analysis design covers the period between year 2010 and 2017. This category of data was mainly in quantitative form. Access to the data will not be a problem as these were published annually in the print and electronic media for public consumption. The researcher intend to benefit in so many ways from the use of this type of information for the study as it will also afford researcher the opportunity to collect high quality of data which would not have been of the same quality if the researcher were to collect it in the primary form.

3.4 Model Specifications

For the purpose of this study, the study employed a regression model as shown below

$$FinHealth = f(DR) \dots 3.1$$

Where:

$$FinHealth = CapAdq, AstQty, BEarnings, BLiq, Sen$$

$$DR = TDTA$$
, $SDTA$, $LDTA$, DE

Thus; capital structure proxies were run against each of the financial health measures

The functional modelone
$$1 = CapAdq = f(DR)$$
......3.2

Where: DR = TDTA, SDTA, LDTA, DE

The Econometric model 1 can thus be written as:

$$CapAdq_{it} = \beta_0 + \beta_1 TDTA_{it} + \beta_2 SDTA_{it} + \beta_3 LDTA_{it} + \beta_4 DE_{it} + \varepsilon_{it}$$

Where:
$$DR = TDTA$$
, $SDTA$, $LDTA$, DE

The Econometric model 2 can thus be written as:

$$AstQlty_{it} = \beta_0 + \beta_1 TDTA_{it} + \beta_2 SDTA_{it} + \beta_3 LDTA_{it} + \beta_4 DE_{it} + \varepsilon_{it}$$

Where:
$$DR = TDTA$$
, $SDTA$, $LDTA$, DE

The Econometric model 3 can thus be written as:

$$BEarnings_{it} = \beta_0 + \beta_1 TDTA_{it} + \beta_2 SDTA_{it} + \beta_3 LDTA_{it} + \beta_4 DE_{it} + \varepsilon_{it}$$

Where:
$$DR = TDTA$$
, $SDTA$, $LDTA$, DE

The Econometric model 4 can thus be written as:

$$BLiq_{it} = \beta_0 + \beta_1 TDTA_{it} + \beta_2 SDTA_{it} + \beta_3 LDTA_{it} + \beta_4 DE_{it} + \varepsilon_{it}$$

Where:
$$DR = TDTA$$
, $SDTA$, $LDTA$, DE

The Econometric model 5 can thus be written as:

$$SEN_{it} = \beta_0 + \beta_1 TDTA_{it} + \beta_2 SDTA_{it} + \beta_3 LDTA_{it} + \beta_4 DE_{it} + \varepsilon_{it}$$

Where:

 $TDTA_{i,t}$ = total debt ratio of bank i in year t

 $SDTA_{i,t}$ = short term debt ratio of bank i in year t

 $LDTA_{i,t}$ = long term leverage for bank i in year t

 $DE_{i,t}$ = debt to equity ratio for bank i in year t

 $CapAdq_{i,t}$ = capital adequacy ratio of bank i in year t

 $AstQty_{i,t}$ = Assets Quality of bank i in year t

 $BEarning_{i,t}$ = earning of bank i in year t

 $BLiq_{i,t}$ = liquidity ratio of bank i in year t

 $SEN_{i,t}$ = Sensitivity of bank i in year t

FH = Financial Health of bank

DR = Debt Ratios

 u_{it} = the error term

 β_1 , β_2 , β_3 and β_4 = coefficient of estimation

3.4.1 A priori expectation

Theoretically, Total Debt to Total Asset(TDTA), Short-term Debt to Total Asset ratio (SDTA), Long term Debt to Total Asset ratio (LDTA) and Debt to Equity Ratio (DER) are expected to have negative effect on the selected deposit money banks' financial health proxies by capital adequacy ratio, asset quality ratio, bank earning, sensitivity. This can be expressed using mathematical notation as: $\beta 1$, $\beta 2$, $\beta 3$ & $\beta 4$ < 0 (for the four models).

3.5 Method of Data Analysis

Tables will be used to present the data. Pairwise Correlation examine the relationship between dependent and independent variables while Panel data regression analysis was use to investigate the extent to which capital structure affect the performance of listed deposit bank in Nigeria in the period between 2010-2016.

Panel data estimation technique was adopted because "it takes care of heterogeneity associated with individual company by allowing for individual specific variables. Also, by combining time series of cross sectional observations, panel data give more informative data, more variability, less co-linearity among variables, more degrees of freedom and more efficiency". Besides, panel data will minimize the bias that can result if individual banks are aggregated. It also enriches empirical analysis in such a way that may not be possible if either only time series data or cross sectional data is used.

3.6. Measurement of Variable

The dependent variable of the study is financial health proxy by Capital Adequacy, Audit Quality, Basic Earning, Liquidity and sensitivity while the independent variables are Ratio of Total Liability to Total Equity, Ratio of Total Debt and Total Asset, Ratio of Short Term Debt to total Asset and Ratio of Long Term Leverage to Total Asset

Table 3.1: Shows the Measurement of Variables

Table 3.1: Measurement of Variables

Parameter	Acronyms	Ratio	Source
Capital	CapAdq	• Ratio of Shareholder's Fund	Misra and Aspal (2013)
Adequacy		to Total Asset	
Asset Quality	AstQty	• Ratio of Non-Performing	Echekoba, Egbunike and
		Loans and Advances to Total	Ezu (2014), Gupta (2014)
		Loans and Advances	
		• Ratio of Total Loans and	
		advances to Total Assets	
Basic Earning	BEarning	• Ratio of Net Income to Total	Adeshina (2014), Lliana,
		Assets	Mihail and Evangelos
		• Ratio of Net Interest Income	(2015)
		to Total Assets	
Liquidity	Liq	• Ratio of Liquid Asset to Total	Golam (2014)
		Asset	
		• Ratio of Liquid Asset to Total	
		Customers Deposit	
Sensitivity	SEN	• Ratio of Provision of loan to	Malihe (2015)
		total loan and advances	
Debt to equity	DE	• Ratio of Total Liability to	Zabri (2012), Alshati
ratio		Total Equity	(2015)
Total debt	TDTA	• Ratio of Total Debt and Total	Akinyomi (2013), Abdl
ratio		Asset	(2010), Khalaf (2013)
Short term	SDTA	• Ratio of Short Term Debt to	Kanalos (2015)

debt ratio		total Asset	
Long term	LDTA	• Ratio of Long Term Leverage	Kanalos (2015)
debt ratio		to Total Asset	

CHAPTER FOUR

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

This chapter covers the presentation as well as analyses of the data collected through secondary source (financial statement) and the discussion of findings by the researcher. In this chapter the data collected during the process of conducting the research work was presented using descriptive table and analyzed using panel data regression analysis.

4.1 Descriptive Statistics

Table 4.1 presents the descriptive statistics for the dependent(s) variable and explanatory variables (total debt to total assets ratio, short term debt to total assets ratio, long term debt to total assets ratio, debt to equity ratio, capital adequacy ratio, asset quality ratio, sensitivity ratio, banks earning and selected deposit money banks liquidity ratio'.

TABLE 4.1 DESCRIPTIVE STATISTICS OF THE VARIABLES

VARIABLES	OBS	MEAN	STD.DEV	MIN	MAX
CapAdp	80	0.0183	0.0249	-0.0164	0.1554
Tdta	80	0.6091	0.2000	0.1213	0.9677
Sdta	80	0.1839	0.2116	0	1.4061
Idta	80	0.1928	0.2159	0.1033	0.8241
Der	80	0.0106	0.0178	-0.0205	0.1034
AstQty	80	0.0319	0.0461	-0.0242	0.0879
SEN	80	0.1024	0.0609	0.0304	0.3286
BEarnings	80	0.0910	0.0751	-0.1151	0.2375
BLiq	80	0.102400	0.0609	0.0304	0.3286

Source: Author's Computation, 2019

From the table, capital adequacy ratio has a minimum and maximum values of -0.0164 and 0.1554 respectively and the mean value of 0.0183 as well as the standard deviation value of 0.0249. The standard deviation of 0.0249 signifies that the data deviate from the mean value from both sides by 0.0249 implying that there is a wide dispersion of the data from the mean because standard deviation is higher than the mean value.

The table also shows that the mean of the Total Debt and Total Assets ratio (TDTA) of the selected firms is 0.6091 with standard deviation of 0.7000, and minimum and maximum values of 0.1213 and 0.9677 respectively. This implies that the performance of the firms in terms of total debt to total assets ratio is on average 0.6091, and the standard deviation value indicates that total debt to total assets ratio of the sampled firms deviates from the mean value from both sides by 0.7000, implying that there is significant dispersion of the data from the mean because the standard deviation is higher.

Short Term Debt to Total Assets ratio (SDTA) of the selected firms is 0.1839 with standard deviation of 0.2116. The minimum and maximum values are 0.0000 and 1.4061 respectively. This implies that Short term debt to total assets ratio of the sampled firms is on average 0.1839, and the standard deviation value indicates that the value deviates from the mean from both sides by 0.2116, implying that there is significant dispersion of the data from the mean because the standard deviation is larger than the mean.

Furthermore, the table shows that the mean of the Long Term Debt to Total Assets ratio (LDTA) of the firms is 1.9285 with standard deviation of 2.1597. The minimum and maximum values are 1.0333 and 8.2411 respectively. This implies that long term leverage of the firms is on average 1.9285. The standard deviation indicates that the value of the firms" long term debt to total assets ratio deviates from the mean value from both sides by 2.159786. This implies that there is significant dispersion of the data from

the mean because the standard deviation is higher than the mean. Debt to Equity Ratio (DER) recorded a mean value of 0.0106 with standard deviation of 0.0178. The minimum and maximum values are -0.2053 and 0.1034 respectively. The standard deviation indicates that the value of debt to equity ratio of the firms deviates from the mean value from both sides by 0.0178. This further implies that there is widely dispersed data from the mean because the standard deviation is large.

Asset Quality ratio (AstQlty) of the selected banks reported a mean value of 0.3190 with standard deviation of .0461. The minimum and maximum values are -0.0242 and 0.0879047 respectively. This implies that growth opportunity of the sampled firms is on average 0.03190, and the standard deviation value indicates that the value deviates from the mean from both sides by 0.0461, implying that there is significant dispersion of the data from the mean because the standard deviation is larger than the mean.

The table shows that the selected banks' Sensitivity ratio (SEN) has an average value of 0.1024 with standard deviation of 0.0461. The minimum and maximum values are 0.0304 and 0.3286 respectively. The standard deviation indicates that the value of sensitivity ratio of selected banks' deviates from the mean value from both sides by 0.0609783. Selected deposit money Banks Earning (BEarnings) has a minimum value of -.1151 and maximum value of 0.2375 with an average (mean) value of .0910.

Finally, the table portrays that the selected deposit money Banks Liquidity (Bliq)' has a mean value of 0.1024 with standard deviation of 0.0609. The minimum and maximum values are -0.0304 and 0.3286 respectively. The standard deviation indicates that the value of liquidity of selected banks deviates from the mean value from both sides by 0.0609 implying that there is a significant dispersion of the data from the mean because the standard deviation is larger than the mean.

4.2 Pairwise Correlation

The table below (Table 4.2) summarizes the results of correlation analyses among the variables. This exercise serves two important purposes. First is to determine whether there are bivariate relationship between each pair of the dependent and independent variables. The second is to ensure that the correlations among the explanatory variables are not so high to the extent of posing multi-collinearity problems.

Table 4.2. Pairwise correlation

	CapAdq	tdta	sdta	ldta	Der	AstQlty	Sen	BEarns	BEarns
CapAdq	1.0000								
Tdta	-0.0360	1.0000							
Sdta	0.7793	0.0188	1.0000						
Ldta	-0.1597	-0.0718	-0.0192	1.0000					
Der	-0.1214	-0.1376	-0.0304	0.0432	1.0000				
AstQlty	-0.2885	0.2151	-0.1682	-0.2798	-0.0217	1.0000			
Sen	0.4198	0.1972	0.2671	-0.2189	-0.0455	0.0621	1.0000		
BEarns	-0.4981	-0.1597	-0.2831	0.1152	0.2639	0.3431	-0.4028	1.0000	
Bliq	0.4198	0.1972	0.2671	-0.2189	-0.0455	0.0621	0.2031	-0.4028	1.0000

Source: Author's Computation, 2019

Relationship between Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy Ratio

From table 4.2 below, Total Debt to Total Assets ratio (TDTA) negatively associated with capital adequacy ratio with coefficient -0.036. Another explanatory variable "Short term Debt to Total Asset ratio (SDTA)" has a strong positive relationship with capital adequacy ratio with coefficient 0.779 and significant at 5% level. Long term Debt to

Total Assets (LDTA) negatively correlated with capital adequacy ratio with coefficient of -0.159. Also, also debt to equity ratio has a negative but weak correlation with capital adequacy with coefficient of -0.1214.

Relationship between Capital Structure and Asset Quality Ratio

From table 4.2 below, total debt to total assets ratio positively associated with assets quality ratio with coefficient 0.2151. "short term debt to total asset ratio has a positive but weak relationship with asset quality ratio with coefficient -0.1682 and significant at 5% level. Long term debt to total assets negatively correlated with asset quality ratio with coefficient of -0.2798. Also, debt to equity ratio has a negative but weak correlation with asset quality with coefficient of -0.0217.

Relationship between Capital Structure and Banks Earnings

From table 4.2 below, Total Debt to Total Assets ratio (TDTA) negatively correlated with selected banks earnings with coefficient -0.1597. "Short term Debt to Total Asset ratio (SDTA)" has a negative but weak relationship with Banks earnings with coefficient -0.2831. Long term Debt to Total Assets (LDTA) positively correlated with selected banks earning with coefficient of 0.1152. Also, debt to equity ratio has a negative but weak correlation with bank earnings with coefficient of -0.0455.

Relationship between Capital Structure and selected Banks Liquidity Ratio

From table 4.2 below, Total Debt to Total Assets ratio (TDTA) positively correlated with selected sensitivity ratio with coefficient 0.1972. "Short term Debt to Total Asset ratio (SDTA)" has a positive but weak relationship with Banks liquidity ratio with coefficient 0.2671. Long term Debt to Total Assets (LDTA) negatively correlated with selected

banks liquidity ratio with coefficient of -0.2189. Also, debt to equity ratio has a negative but weak correlation with liquidity ratio with coefficient of -0.0455.

Relationship between Capital Structure and Sensitivity Ratio

From table 4.2 below, total debt to total assets ratio positively associated with Sensitivity ratio with coefficient 0.1972. "Short term Debt to Total Asset ratio (SDTA)" has a positive but weak relationship with sensitivity ratio with coefficient 0.2671 and significant at 5% level. Long term Debt to Total Assets (LDTA) negatively correlated with sensitivity ratio with coefficient of -0.2189. Also, debt to equity ratio has a negative but weak correlation with sensitivity ratio with coefficient of -0.0455.

Generally, the pairwise correlations among independent variables were low, as this confirmed the absence of multicollineary among the variables. To summaries these results, the correlation between total debt ratio and short term debt ratio is 0.0188. The correlation coefficient between total debt ratio and long term debt ratio is -0.0718. Between total debt ratio and debt to equity ratio, the coefficient is -0.1376, and between short term debt ratio and long term debt ratio the coefficient is -0.0192. Between short term debt ratio and debt to equity ratio, the correlation coefficient is -0.0304. Between long term ratio and debt to equity ratio the correlation coefficient is 0.0432

4.3 Regression Analysis

4.3.1 Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy Ratio of Nigerian Deposit Money

Banks

The broad objective of this work is to examine the effect capital structure on the Capital Adequacy ratio of deposit money banks in Nigeria where this financial health was depicted into five namely, capital adequacy ratio, assets quality ratio, sensitivity ratio, selected banks earning and the liquidity ratio of selected deposit money bank in Nigeria.

Thus, the below analyses presents the extent to which capital structure influence Nigerian deposit money banks financial health in term of capital adequacy ratio. To achieve this, a panel data regression analysis was conducted and the result is presented in the table below. Perhaps, both random and fixed effect model were analysed and hausman test was conducted to decide on the best estimates from the both model results. Table 4.3 below presents the result for hausman specification statistics for the model, the result reveals chi2 value of 7.88 with 0.1631probability which is above the 0.0500 significant margin. Accepts the null hypothesis that difference in coefficients are not systematic. From the below result the random effect was accepted and interpreted as the appropriate model.

Table 4.3 Hausman Specification Test

Variables	(b) fixed	(B) random	(b-B)	sqrt(diag(V_b-
			Difference	V_B))
				S.E.
tdta	-0.0962692	-0.1040224	0.0077532	0.0105317
sdta	-0.1549964	-0.2233184	0.068322	0.100897
ldta	0.0889665	0.0797522	0.0092143	0.0048039
der	-0.0552835	-0.0519678	-0.0033157	0.0033241

Test: Ho: difference in coefficients not systematic

chi2(4) = 7.88 Prob>chi2 = 0.1631

Source: Author's Computation, 2019

It can be deduced from the panel data (random effect) output below that the coefficient of determination (R-squared) has a value of 0.7935 implies that explanatory variables (total debt to asset ratio, short term debt to total assets ratio, long term debt to total assets ratio and debt to equity ratio of Nigerian deposit money banks) were able to explain 0.79% of the total variation in Capital adequacy ratio which is a portrayal that the explanatory variables constitute about 79% of the elements that predict the dependent

variable (capital adequacy ratio), implying that the stochastic (unobserved) features in the model constitute about 21% which also showcase a strong goodness of fit of the model. The F-statistics was significant at 1% evidenced by its probability of 0.0000 which implies that all independent variables were jointly significant in explaining capital adequacy ratio.

A consideration of the strength of relationships, using the z-statistic shows that an explanatory variables relates significantly with explained variable (Capital adequacy ratio) at 1% level

The variable "total debt to total asset ratio" shows a negative coefficient of 0.1040224 in Capital adequacy ratio (CaAdq), and significant at 1% level implying that where other predictor variables are held constant, a unit change in the total debt to total assets ratio will precipitate 0.10units decline of capital adequacy ratio.

Another explanatory variable "short term debt to total assets ratio" shows a negative coefficient of 0.2233184 in share price volatility and significant at 1%, implying that where other predictor variables are held constant, a unit change in selected deposit money banks' short term debt to total assets ratio will precipitate a 0.22unit decline of Capital adequacy ratio. Selected Deposit money banks' debt to equity ratio reports a negative coefficient of 0.0519678 implying a unit increase in debt to equity ratio will bring about 0.06 units increase in capital adequacy ratio.

On the other hand, selected banks' long term debt to total assets ratio reveals a positive coefficient of 0.0797522, and significant at 1% implying a unit increase in long term to total assets ratio will result to about 0.079 rise in capital adequacy of selected deposit money banks.

Table 4.4 Panel data Regression Results (Random Effects)

Random-effects GLS regression Number of obs = 80Number of groups = 10Group variable: countries R-sq: within =0.7935 Obs per group: min = 8Between 0.7078 avg = 8.0Overall 0.7840 = 8= max Wald chi2(4) = 130.70corr(u i, X) = 0 (assumed) Prob> chi2 = 0.0000

CapAdq	Coef.	Std. Err.	Z	P> z	[95% Conf.	Interval]	
Tdta	-0.1040224	0.026785	-3.88	0.000	-0.15652	-0.0515248	
Sdta	-0.2233184	0.0782078	-2.86	0.004	-0.3766028	-0.070034	
Ldta	0.0797522	0.009648	8.27	0.000	0.0608425	0.098662	
Der	-0.0519678	0.0151932	-3.42	0.001	-0.081746	-0.0221896	
_cons	0.052897	0.0145665	3.63	0.000	0.0243473	0.0814468	
sigma_u	0						
sigma_e	0.0121653						
Rho	0	(fraction of variance due to u_i)					

Source: Author's Computation, 2019

4.3.2 Capital Structure and Assets Quality of Selected Nigerian Deposit Money Banks

The broad objective of this work is to examine the effect capital structure on the financial health of deposit money banks in Nigeria where this financial health was depicted into five namely, capital adequacy ratio, assets quality ratio, sensitivity ratio, selected banks earning and the liquidity ratio of selected deposit money bank in Nigeria. Thus, the below analyses presents the extent to which capital structure influence Nigerian deposit money banks financial health in term of Assets Quality. To achieve this, a panel data regression analysis was conducted and the result is presented in the table below. Perhaps,

both random and fixed effect model were analysed and hausman test was conducted to decide on the best estimates from the both model results.

Table 4.5 below presents the result for hausman specification statistics for the model, the result reveals chi2 value of 7.35 with 0.1961probability which is above the 0.0500 significant margin. Accepts the null hypothesis that difference in coefficients are not systematic. From the above result the random effect was accepted and interpreted as the appropriate model.

Table 4.5 Hausman Specification Test

---- Coefficients ----

Variables	(b)	(B)	(b-B)	sqrt(diag(V_b- V_B))
	fixed2	random2	Difference	S.E
tdta	-0.109725	-0.1161598	0.0064348	0.0089239
sdta	-0.1055162	-0.2141154	0.1085992	0.1004289
Satu	0.1000102	0.2111101	0.1002332	0.100 .209
ldta	0.0947543	0.0865906	0.0081638	0.0030574
der	-0.1968959	-0.1965338	-0.0003621	
	3.23 003 03	, 50000		

Test: Ho: difference in coefficients not systematic

chi2(4) = 7.35

Prob>chi2 = 0.1961

Source: Author's Computation, 2019

It can be deduced from the panel data (random effect) output below that the coefficient of determination (R-squared) has a value of 0.7851 implies that explanatory variables (total debt to asset ratio, short term debt to total assets ratio, long term debt to total assets ratio and debt to equity ratio of Nigerian deposit money banks) were able to explain about 0.79% of the total variation in Assets Quality of selected of deposit money banks which is a portrayal that the explanatory variables constitute about 79% of the elements that predict the dependent variable (Assets Quality), implying that the stochastic

(unobserved) features in the model constitute about 21% which also showcase a strong goodness of fit of the model. The F-statistics was significant at 1% evidenced by its probability of 0.0000 which implies that all independent variables were jointly significant in explaining Assets quality of selected deposit money banks in Nigeria.

The variable "total debt to asset ratio" shows a negative coefficient of 0.1161598 in Assets Quality (AstQlty), and significant at 1% level implying that where other predictor variables are held constant, a unit change in the total debt to total asset ratio will precipitate 0.12units decline of Assets Quality.

The explanatory variable "short term debt total assets ratio" shows a negative coefficient of 0.2141154 in Asset Quality and significant at 1%, implying that where other predictor variables are held constant, a unit change in selected money deposit banks' shot term to total assets ratio will precipitate a 0.22unit decline of Assets Quality. Selected Banks' debt to equity ratios reports a negative coefficient of -.1965338 implies a unit increase in selected banks debt to equity ratio ratio will bring about 0.20units decline in selected firm Assets Quality.

On the other hand, long term debt to total assets ratio of selected bank reveals a positive coefficient of 0.0865906, and significant at 1% implying a unit increase in long term to total assets ratio will result to about 0.087unit rise in assets quality of selected deposit money banks

Table 4.6 Panel data Regression Results (Random Effects)

Random-effects GL	S regression	Number of obs	= 80
Group variable: cou	intries	Number of groups	= 10
R-sq: within	= 0.7851	Obs per group: min	= 8
between	= 0.5539	avg	= 8.0
overall	= 0.7569	max	= 8
Wald chi2(4)	= 112.08		
corr(u i, X)	= 0 (assumed)	Prob> chi2	= 0.0000

AsstQlty	Coef.	Std. Err.	Z	P> z	[95% Conf	Interval]
Tdta	-0.1161598	0.0284309	-4.09	0.000	-0.1718834	-0.0604362
Sdta	-0.2141154	0.0828776	-2.58	0.010	-0.3765526	-0.0516782
Ldta	0.0865906	0.0098493	8.79	0.000	0.0672862	0.1058949
Der	0.0669824	0.0155447	4.31	0.000	0.0365153	0.0974494
_cons	0					
sigma_u	0.0123758					
sigma_e	0					
Rho		(fraction of variance due to u_i)				

Source: Author's Computation, 2019

4.3.3 Capital Structure and Earnings of Selected Nigerian Deposit Money Banks

The broad objective of this work is to examine the effect capital structure on the financial health of deposit money banks in Nigeria where this financial health was depicted into five namely, capital adequacy ratio, assets quality ratio, selected banks earning, liquidity ratio and sensitivity of selected deposit money bank in Nigeria. Thus, the below analyses presents the extent to which capital structure influence Nigerian deposit money banks financial health in term of banks earnings. To achieve this, a panel data regression analysis was conducted and the result is presented in the table below. Perhaps, both random and fixed effect model were analysed and hausman test was conducted to decide on the best estimates from the both model results.

Table 4.9 below presents the result for hausman specification statistics for the model, the result reveals chi2 value of 0.09 with 0.9990 probability which is above the 0.0500 significant margin. Accepts the null hypothesis that difference in coefficients are not systematic. From the below result the random effect was accepted and interpreted as the appropriate model.

Table 4.7 Hausman Specification Test

---- Coefficients ----

Variables	(b)	(B)	(b-B)	sqrt(diag(V_b-V_B))
	fixed	random	Difference	S.E.
Tdta	-0.0623446	-0.0612608	-0.0010838	0.0046804
Sdta	0.094466	0.0939753	0.0004908	0.0034604
Ldta	-0.1123741	-0.1111136	-0.0012605	0.0098856
Der	-0.2075498	-0.2054922	-0.0020576	0.0327122

Test: Ho: difference in coefficients not systematic

chi2(4) = 0.09 Prob>chi2 = 0.9990

Source: Author's Computation, 2019

It can be deduced from the panel data (random effect) output below that the coefficient of determination (R-squared) has a value of 0.7914 implies that explanatory variables (total debt to total assets ratio, short term debt to total assets ratio, long term debt to total assets ratio and debt to equity ratio") were able to explain 0.79% of the total variation in Banks earnings which is a portrayal that the explanatory variables constitute about 21% of the elements that predict the dependent variable (BEarnings), implying that the stochastic (unobserved) features in the model constitute about 21% which also showcase a strong goodness of fit of the model. The F-statistics was significant at 1% evidenced by its probability of 0.0000 which implies that all independent variables were jointly significant in explaining basic earning.

With respect to the coefficients, the constant (C) has a value of 0.0619, whose implication is that if all the explanatory variables are held constant or pegged at zero (0), the explained variable – bank earnings will surge by 0.0619974units. This shows that regardless of change on the explanatory variables, firms' profitability will be elevated.

A consideration of the strength of relationships, using the t-statistic shows that only debt to equity ratio whose z-statistics is -1.91 relates insignificantly with bank earnings given its 0.056 probability which is above the 0.0500 significant margin, while other explanatory variables show statistically significant at 1% level with the explained variable (bank earnings).

The variable "Total Debt to Total Assets ratio (TDTA)" shows a negative coefficient of 0.0612608 in Banks Earnings (BEarnngs), and significant at 1% level implying that where other predictor variables are held constant, a unit change in the total leverage will precipitate 0.61units decline of basic earning. Long-term Debt to Total Assets ratio (LDTA) shows a negative coefficient of 0.1111136 in Bank Earnings and significant at 1%, implying that where other predictor variables are held constant, a unit change in the Long-term debt to total assets ratio will precipitate a 0.11unit decline of bank earnings.

Debt to Equity Ratio (DER) shows an insignificant negative direction as it possess a coefficients of 0.2054922 in bank earnings indicating that where other variables are held at zero, a unit increase in quick ratio will result to about 0.21units decline in bank Earnings, On the other hand, the ratio of Short-term Debt to Total Assets (SDTA) reveals a positive coefficient of 0.0939753 in Banks Earnings, and significant at 1% implying a unit increase in short term to total assets ratio will result to about 0.093 rise in Banks Earnings.

Table 4.8 Panel Data Regression Results (Random Effect)

Random-effects GLS regression	Number of obs	=	80
Group variable: countries	Number of groups		10
R-sq: within $= 0.7914$	Obs per group: mi	n=	8
Between = 0.1005	avg	=	8.0
overall $= 0.7112$	max	=	8.0
Wald $chi2(4) = 130.97$			
$corr(u_i, X) = 0$ (assumed)	Prob> chi2	=	0.0000

BEarnings	Coef.	Std. Err.	Z	P> z	[95%	Interval]		
					Conf.			
Tdla	-0.0612608	0.0152453	-4.02	0.000	-0.0911411	-0.0313805		
sdta	0.0939753	0.0096497	9.74	0.000	0.0750622	0.1128883		
Ldta	-0.1111136	0.0277512	-4.00	0.000	-0.165505	-0.0567222		
der	-0.2054922	0.1076593	-1.91	0.056	-0.4165004	0.0055161		
_cons	0.0619974	0.0152083	4.08	0.000	0.0321897	0.0918052		
sigma_u	0.01189734							
sigma_e	0.01230928							
rho	0.4829874	(fraction of	(fraction of variance due to u_i)					

Source: Author's Computation, 2019

4.3.4 Capital Structure and Liquidity of Selected Nigerian Deposit Money Banks

The broad objective of this work is to examine the effect capital structure on the financial health of deposit money banks in Nigeria where this financial health was depicted into five namely, capital adequacy ratio, assets quality ratio, selected banks earning, liquidity ratio and sensitivity of selected deposit money banks in Nigeria. Thus, the below analyses presents the extent to which capital structure influence Nigerian deposit money banks financial health in term of banks liquidity. To achieve this, a panel data regression analysis was conducted and the result is presented in the table below. Perhaps, both random and fixed effect model were analysed and hausman test was conducted to decide on the best estimates from the both model results.

Table 4.11 below presents the result for hausman specification statistics for the model, the result reveals chi2 value of 12.13 with 0.0069 probability which is above the 0.0500 significant margin. Rejects the null hypothesis that difference in coefficients are not systematic. Evidenced Hausman specification test result above, the fixed effect was accepted and interpreted as the appropriate model.

Table 4.9 Hausman Specification Test

---- Coefficients ----

	(b)	(B)	(b-B)	sqrt(diag(V_b-V_B))
	fixed3	random3	Difference	S.E.
tdla	0.0927878	0.0814035	0.0113843	0.0033954
sdla	-0.0997329	-0.1055804	0.0058475	0.0166612
ldta	-0.0239099	-0.0124357	-0.0114742	0.0032501
der	-0.0615238	-0.056307	-0.0052168	0.0035837

Test: Ho: difference in coefficients not systematic

chi2(4) = 12.13 Prob>chi2 = 0.0069

Source: Author's Computation, 2019

Considering the fixed effect result from table 4.5 below, coefficient of determination (R-squared) has a value of 0.7487 implies that explanatory variables (total debt to total assets ratio, short term debt to total assets ratio, long term debt to total assets ratio and debt to equity ratio") were able to explain 0.75% of the total variation in Selected banks liquidity which is a portrayal that the explanatory variables constitute 75% of the elements that predict the dependent variable (Bliq), implying that the stochastic (unobserved) features in the model constitute about 25% which also showcase a strong goodness of fit of the model. The F-statistics was significant at 1% evidenced by its probability of 0.0000 which implies that all independent variables were jointly significant in explaining banks liquidity.

With respect to the coefficients, the constant (C) has a value of .0249353, whose implication is that if all the explanatory variables are held constant or pegged at zero (0), the explained variable – selected banks liquidity will surge by .0249353 units. This shows that regardless of change on the explanatory variables, firm liquidity will be elevated.

A consideration of the strength of relationships, using the t-statistic shows that all independent variables total debt to total assets ratio, short term debt to total assets ratio, long term debt to total assets ratio and debt to equity ratio" relates significantly with banks liquidity given their probability of 0.000, 0.008, 0.04 and 0.000 respectively which were below the 0.0500 significant margin,

Total Debt to Total Assets ratio (TDTA) shows a positive coefficient of .0927878 in bank liquidity and significant at 1%, implying that where other predictor variables are held constant, a unit change in total debt to total assets ratio os selected bank will bring about 0.093units increase in banks liquidity. Short term Debt to Total Assets ratio (SDTA) has a negative coefficient of 0.0997329 and significant at 5% in explaining banks liquidity reporting a unit increase in short term debt ratio will result to about 0.099unit decline in banks liquidity of selected deposit money bank in Nigeria.

Long term Debt Total Assets ratio (LDTA) has a negative coefficient of 0.0239099 in Banks liquidity, implying a unit change in the long term debt ratio will result to about 0.0239099 units decline in selected bank liquidity.

Finally, "debt to equity ratio" shows a negative coefficient of 0.056307in banks liquidity ratio and significant at 1%, implying that where other predictor variables are held constant, a unit change in selected banks' long term debt ratio will result to a 0.056units decline of banks liquidity ratio.

Table 4.10 Panel data regression results (Fixed Effects)

Fixed-effects (within) regression	Number of obs =	80
Group variable: countries	Number of groups =	10
R-sq: within $= 0.7487$	Obs per group: min =	8
between $= 0.4999$	avg =	8.0
overall $= 0.6922$	max =	8
F(3,33) = 32.77		
corr(u i, Xb) = -0.3186	Prob > F =	0.0000

Bliq	Coef.	Std. Err.	T	P> t	[95%	
					Conf.	
					Interval]	
Tdla	0.0927878	0.0114206	8.12	0.000	0.0695525	0.1160231
Sdta	-0.0997329	0.0352739	-2.83	0.008	-0.1714983	-0.0279675
Ldta	-0.0239099	0.0116671	-2.05	0.048	-0.0476469	-0.000173
Der	-0.056307	0.0149541	-3.77	0.000	-0.0856166	-0.0269974
_cons	0.0249353	0.0091902	2.71	0.011	0.0062377	0.0436328
sigma_u	0.00797511					
sigma_e	0.01330581					
Rho	0.26429742	(fraction of variance due to u_i)				

Source: Author's Computation, 2019

4.3.5 Capital Structure and Sensitivity Ratio of Selected Nigerian Deposit Money Banks

The broad objective of this work is to examine the effect capital structure on the financial health of deposit money banks in Nigeria where this financial health was depicted into five namely, capital adequacy ratio, assets quality ratio, selected banks earning, the liquidity ratio and sensitivity ratio of the selected deposit money bank in Nigeria. Thus, the below analyses presents the extent to which capital structure influence Nigerian deposit money banks financial health in term of sensitivity. To achieve this, a panel data

regression analysis was conducted and the result is presented in the table below. Perhaps, both random and fixed effect model were analysed and hausman test was conducted to decide on the best estimates from the both model results.

Table 4.11 below presents the result for hausman specification statistics for the model, the result reveals chi2 value of 11.27with 0.0803probability which is above the 0.0500 significant margin. Accepts the null hypothesis that difference in coefficients are not systematic. From the above result the random effect was accepted and interpreted as the appropriate model.

Table 4.11 Hausman specification test

---- Coefficients ----

Variables	(b) fixed	(B) random	(b-B) Difference	sqrt(diag(V_b-V_B)) S.E.
Tdta	-0.1063164	-0.108825	0.0025086	0.0107829
Sdta	-0.1289815	-0.2252998	0.0963183	0.0978832
Ldta	-0.0615238	-0.056307	-0.0052168	0.0035837
Der	0.0868755	0.0793506	0.0075249	0.0046311

Test: Ho: difference in coefficients not systematic

chi2(4) = 11.27

Prob>chi2 = 0.0803

Source: Author's Computation, 2019

It can be deduced from the panel data (random effect) output below that the coefficient of determination (R-squared) has a value of 0.8135 implies that explanatory variables (total debt to asset ratio, short term debt to total assets ratio, long term debt to total assets ratio and debt to equity ratio of Nigerian deposit money banks) were able to explain about 0.81% of the total variation in sensitivity which is a portrayal that the explanatory variables constitute about 81% of the elements that predict the dependent variable (sensitivity), implying that the stochastic (unobserved) features in the model constitute about 19% which also showcase a strong goodness of fit of the model. The F-statistics was significant at 1% evidenced by its probability of 0.0000 which implies that all

independent variables were jointly significant in explaining sensitivity ratio of the selected deposit money banks.

With respect to the coefficients, the constant (C) has a value of 0.0587, whose implication is that if all the explanatory variables are held constant or pegged at zero (0), the explained variable (sensitivity) will surge by 0.0587 units. This shows that regardless of change on the explanatory variables, selected firms' share price volatility will be elevated.

A consideration of the strength of relationships, using the z-statistic shows that only leverage ratio whose z-statistics is -1.78 relates insignificantly with sensitivity given its 0.075 probability which is above the 0.0500 significant margin, while other explanatory variables show statistically significant at 1% level with the explained variable (sensitivity).

The variable "total debt to asset ratio" shows a negative coefficient of 0.1088 in sensitivity (SEN), and significant at 1% level implying that where other predictor variables are held constant, a unit change in the total debt to total assets ratio will precipitate 0.10units decline of sensitivity.

Short term debt to total assets ratio shows a negative coefficient of 0.2252 in sensitivity and significant at 1%, implying that where other predictor variables are held constant, a unit change in the dividend payout ratio will precipitate a 0.23units decline of sensitivity.

Another explanatory variable "long term debt to assets ratio" shows a negative coefficient of 0.0563 in sensitivity and significant at 1%, implying that where other predictor variables are held constant, a unit change in selected banks' long term debt ratio will result to a 0.056units decline of sensitivity.

On the other hand, selected banks debt to equity ratio reveals a positive coefficient of 0.0865, and significant at 1% implying a unit increase in debt to equity ratio will result to about 0.087unit rise in sensitivity.

Table 4.12 Panel Data Regression Results (Random Effects)

Random-effects GLS regression	Number of obs	=	80
Group variable: countries	Number of groups	=	10
R-sq: within $= 0.8135$	Obs per group: min	=	8
between $= 0.6942$	avg	=	8.0
overall $= 0.8020$	max	=	8
Wald $chi2(4) = 141.77$			
$corr(u_i, X) = 0$ (assumed)	Prob> chi2	=	0.0000

SEN	Coef	Std. Err.	Z	P> z	[95% Conf	Interval]
Tdta	-0.108825	0.0261507	-4.16	0.000	-0.1600794	-0.0575705
Sdta	-0.2252998	0.0759571	-2.97	0.003	-0.374173	-0.0764266
Ldta	-0.056307	0.0149541	-3.77	0.000	-0.0856166	-0.0269974
Der	0.0793506	0.0093721	8.47	0.000	0.0609817	0.0977195
Cons	0.0587527	0.0145227	4.05	0.000	0.0302888	0.0872166
sigma_u	0					
sigma_e	0.01172899					
Rho	0	(fraction of variance due to u_i)				

Source: Author's Computation, 2019

4.4 Discussion of Findings

From the findings, a capital structure proxy "Total Debt to Total Asset ratio" reported a negative relationship with selected banks financial health proxies (capital adequacy ratio, asset quality ratio, banks earnings, banks liquidity ratio and selected banks sensitivity) except liquidity ratio that recorded a positive relationship with total debt to total asset ratio. This is in tandem with the work of Abdul (2010) and Khalaf (2013) who found a

significance negative relationship between total debts to total assets ratio on the firm performance measured by Return on Assets (ROA) of 36 engineering firms in Pakistani market listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange (KSE) during the period 2003-2009. It contrarily agreed with the findings of Akinyomi (2013), who found a positive significant relationship between total debt to total assets ratio and Nigerian manufacturing firm return on assets. Perhaps the findings is agreed with a-priori Expectation which predicted a bi-directional relationship between total assets to total debt ratio and the financial health of selected deposit money banks in Nigeria

Another capital structure measure "short term debt to total assets ratio" has a significant negative effects on financial health proxies (capital adequacy ratio, asset quality ratio, sensitivity, banks earnings and selected banks liquidity ratio) except selected banks earning that has a positive relationship with selected deposit money banks financial health mearsures. The is in congruence with the studies of This is contrary to the findings of Kosmidou (2004), that reported positive relationship between long term leverage ratio and return on asset, but the finding is consistent with Onaolapo and Kajola (2015) submission who does their own in Nigeria context.

Long-term debt to total assets ratio reported a significant negative effect on selected deposit money banks proxies (capital adequacy ratio, asset quality ratio, sensitivity, banks earnings and selected banks liquidity ratio) but however showed positive effects on capital adequacy ratio and assets quality ratio. of Kanalous (2015) who found a positive relationship firm long term sustainability and Kenyan manufacturing firm profitability and but it is contrary to the results of Wiwattanakantang (1999) and De Schargrodsky (2002) who reported a negative relationship. But consistent with Moore (1986) findings.

Finally, "Debt to Equity Ratio (DER)" showed significant negative effect on the financial health measures of selected deposit money banks in Nigeria, which is partially consistent with theoretical expectation and contrary with the work of Alshati (2015) who found a positive relationship debt to equity ratio and bank profitability but it is consistent with the work of Rasheed (2012), Wiwattanakantang (1999), De Miguel and Pindado (2001), Schargrodsky (2002), Moore (1986) and Zabri (2012) who reported negatives relationship between debt to equity ratio and banks profitability.

Finally, the findings of this study is inline with the peckling order theory of capital structure as the result showed that firms prefer financing their operations from internally generated funds so as not to send negative signals that may lower the stock price of the firms.

CHAPTER FIVE

SUMMARY, CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 Summary

This study was conducted to investigate the impact of capital structure on financial health of listed deposit money banks in Nigeria. The study was divided into five chapters. The first chapter discussed the background issues, which led to developing three objectives, and formulating three hypotheses for the research with a scope covering eight (8) years, from 2010 to 2017. The review of conceptual literature and empirical studies on capital structure and financial health was carried out. Also, the concept and measurement of bank financial health was discussed as well as the review of the relationship between each of the proxies of the independent variables and the dependent variable. The theoretical framework that underpinned the study was also discussed.

Descriptive research design was used in measuring the relationship among the variables of the study. Data was collected from secondary source through the annual reports and accounts of 10 selected listed deposit money banks in Nigeria. Panel Data regression was used to analyzed the collected data.

The researcher used capital adequacy ratio, asset quality ratio, banks earning, liquidity and Sensitivity (CAELS) as the measure of banks financial health, while explanatory variables include total debt to total assets ratio, long term debt to total assets ratio, short-term debt to total assets ratio and debt to equity ratio which measured capital structure. The result of the descriptive statistics, correlation matrix and regression were presented, analyzed and discussed in chapter four.

The result reported a significant negative relationship in total debt to total assets ratio, long term debt and total assets ratio, market size except debt to equity ratio that reported

an insignificant negative relationship with bank financial health. The significant bidirectional relationship found between debt ratios (total debt to total assets ratio and long term debt to assets ratio) and banks financial health proxies this findings joined other numerous researchers like Babalola (2013), in validating the assumption of pecking order theory which argued that the more profitable the banks become, the lesser they borrow because they would have sufficient internal finance to undertake their investment projects.

5.2 Conclusion

Considering the data of 10 banks collated through secondary source this study empirically examined the impacts of capital structure on the financial health of listed deposit money bank in Nigeria. The results indicate that all capital structure variables, viz. TDTA, LTDTA, and DER, have significant inverse impacts on financial health proxies (capital adequacy ratio, asset quality ratio, banks earning, liquidity and the selected banks sensitivity), which concords with the observation made by Hasan et al. (2014); Salim and Yaday (2012). Furthermore, in contrary to agreement with Hasan et al. (2014); Salim and Yadav (2012), the results of this study suggest that SDTA have significant positive impacts on bank financial health measures "capital adequacy ratio, asset quality ratio, banks earnings, liquidity and selected banks sensitivity". These findings are in tandem with that of others (Chowdhury and Chowdhury 2010; Umar et al. 2012; Salteh et al. 2012; Arbabiyan and Safari (2009), who observed positive impacts. We therefore, conclude that there are significant negative impacts of capital structure on the financial health of Nigerian banks. These negative impacts can be explained by the characteristics of an under developed bond and equity market in the developing countries like Nigeria, such as information asymmetry, strong covenants of debt and so on, for which there exists a high cost of debt.

5.3 Recommendations

From the above conclusion, the following recommend are suggested to help improve the capital market:

- (i) Capital regulations should be ensured by the CBN to maintain a minimum level of equity per loans and other asset
- (ii) Findings showed that asset quality is been affected by capital structure which necessitates the need for accurately estimates of asset quality and its impact on the overall condition of a firm because as asset quality goes up, benefit includes more liquidity, greater risk capacity and lower cost of funds which can lead to higher valuation level.
- (iii) Financial managers should try to finance from retained earnings rather than relying heavily on debt capital in their capital structure. However, they can employ debt capital as the last resort.
- (iv) With a goal of maximizing the performance of banks, the managers should make an effort to attain an optimal level of capital structure and endeavor to uphold it as much as possible. These negative impacts also suggest that the legislative rules and policies have to be designed in such a way to assist firms in sharply reducing the reliance on too much use of debt.
- (v) Although we observed significant negative impacts of capital structure choice on the financial health of the sampled banks, this investigation still suffers from a comprehensive and systematic database for all banks in Nigeria. As more systematic datasets become available, we suggest that further research can be conducted on the same issue by employing data

from a larger sample and more control variables for a longer period to confirm our findings.

5.4. Contributions to Knowledge

The study examined the impact of capital structure on the financial health og deposit money bank in Nigeria. This section presents areas in which the present study contributes to capital structure literature.

From the empirical study, it was seen that various study has been conducted on the concept of capital structures with varying methods and approaches from different countries and sectors of different economies. Within the scope of the researcher, this is the first study to examine the effect of capital structure on financial health using the CAELS which is a bridge in gap in literature. The CAELS approach is the Nigeria deposit insurance corporation rating to promote the safety and soundness of financial institution through on-going evaluation and monitoring, including the assessment of risk management system, financial conditions and compliance with laws and regulations.

5.5 Limitation and Delimitation of the study

The main objective of the study is to examine the impact of capital structure on the financial health of deposit money banks in Nigeria. This study is however limited to 10 deposit money banks from the period of 2010 to 2017. The banks were selected based on 2017 fitch rating of top 10 viable banks in Nigeria. Also, the banks hold the largest portion of financial asset in the economy. Some of the variables employed in the study have alternative ways of measurement which may give rise to different results.

5.6 Suggestions for further studies

The effect of capital structure on banks financial health is extensive. Thus, it is impossible to exhaustively study the subject in a single report. Consequently, even after this effort, there are still numerous areas that are open for study. In addition, the findings of this study imply areas that need further study.

The scope of this study covers the operations of only 10 deposit money banks in Nigeria for the period of ten (10) years. Giving enough time and resources it is possible to attempt to study the entire banks' or other sectors like manufacturing companies in Nigeria over a long period of time and using different statistical methods in order to have a more comprehensive result.

From the findings this study shows that there are other 20% at average, unconsidered variables than the independent variables used for this study that affect bank profitability evidenced by the average R-square value of 80%. Research could be conducted to identify those other factors so as to enhance the profit generating capabilities of the banks'.

REFERENCES

- Abdulrashid I. S, Pofi W.K, Saminu I. D. & Mohammad Y. (2017) Effect of capital structure on the performance of deposit money banks in Nigeria. *International Journal of Accounting and finance review*. Vol.1, No.1; 2017.
- Abor, J. (2008). Determinants of capital structure of Ghanaian firms, African Economic Research Consortium Paper 176, Africa Economic Research Consortium, Nairobi.
- Adeshina K., S. (2014). A Comparative performance evaluation of the Nigerian banking Sector in the Post 2005 Consolidation: Through the Camel Rating System International *Journal of Business and Social Science* Vol. 3 No. 13; July 2012
- Akinyomi, O. J., & Olagunju, A. (2013). Determinants of capital structure in Nigeria. *International Journal of Innovation and Applied Studies*, 3(4), 999-1005.
- Akomeah, E., Bentil, P., & Musah, A. (2018). The Impact of capital structure decisions on firm performance: The case of Listed non-financial institutions in Ghana. *International Journal of Academic Research in Accounting, Finance and Management Sciences*, 8(4), 1-15.
- Aryeetag, E. (1998). Informal Finance for private sector development in Africa. *Africa development bank group*.
- Aryeetey, E. (1994). Private investment under certainty in Ghana. *Word development* 22(8), 1211-1221.
- Avatar, N., Bano, M., Bano, S., Zia, H. T., & Jammel. N. (2016). Capital structure impact on banking sector performance in Pakistan. *International Review of management and Business Research* 5(2), 519-532.
- Awunyo, D.V & Badu, J (2012). Capital structure and performance of listed Bank in Ghana, *Global Journal of Human Social* Vol. 12(5).
- Boodhoo, R. (2009). Capital structure and performance of Mauritius listed firm's theory and empirical evidence.
- Booth, L. V., Aivazian, A., Demirguc, K., & Maksimovic, V.(2001). Capital structure in developing countries. *The journal of finance* 56, pg. 87-130.
- Bradley, M., Jerrel, G.A., & Kim, E.H. (1984). On the existence of an optimal Capital Structure: theory and evidence 39(3), 857-878.
- Brennan, M. J., & Schwartz, E. S. (1984). Optimal financial policy and firm valuation. *The journal of finance*, 39(3), 593-607.
- Brigham, E., & Gapenski, L. (1996). Financial management: Dallas: The Dryden press:

- Caesar, G., & Holmes, S. (2003). *Capital Structure and Financing of SMEs*: Australian evidence. *Accounting and finance* 43(2), 123-147.
- Castanias, R. (1983). Bankruptcy risk and optimal Capital Structure. *The Journal of Finance*, 38(5), 1617-1635.
- Chechen, I. L., & Olayiwola, A. B. (2014). Capital structure and profitability of Nigerian quoted firms: *The agency cost theory perspective American International Journal of social science* 3(1), 139-158.
- Chen, J.(2004). Determinant of capital structure of Chinese listed companies. *Journal of business research* 57(12), 1341-1351.
- Chittenden, F., Hall, G., & Hutchinson, P. (1996). Small firm growth, access to capital markets and financial structure: Review of issues and an empirical investigation. *Small business economics* 12(2), 113-130.
- Chowdhury, A & Chowdhury, S.P (2010). Impact of Capital Structure on firms value: Evidence from Bangladesh. BRAC Business School, BRAC University, Bangladesh
- Creswell, J. W. (2003). Research Design: Qualitative, Quantitative, and Mixed Methods Approaches. California: Sage Publications Inc.
- Dada, A. O., & Ghazali, Z. B. (2016). The Impact of Capital Structure on Firm Performance: Empirical Evidence from Nigeria. *Journal of Economics and Finance*, 7(4), 23-30.
- De Miguel, A., & Pindado, J. (2001). Determinants of capital structure: new evidence from Spanish panel data. *Journal of corporate finance*, 7(1), 77-99.
- Dewatripont, M., Rey.P.,& Aghion. A. (1999). Agency costs, firm behavior and nature of competition. Center for Economic policy Research.
- Dilrukshi, Y., A. (2016) Capital Structure and Profitability: An Empirical Analysis of SMEs in the UK. *Journal of Emerging Issues in Economics, Finance and Banking (JEIEFB), Vol 4, Issue 2, Pages 1661-1675, 2015.*
- Echekoba, F. N., Egbunike, C. F., & Ezu, D. K. (2014). Determinants of bank profitability in Nigeria: Using Camel Rating Model (2001–2010). *IOSR Journal of Business and Management*, 16(9), 44-50.
- Eniola, O. J.; Adewunmi, A. A. & Akinselure, O.P. (2017). Impact of capital structure on the profitability of selected quoted banks in Nigeria, International Journal of Economics, Commerce and Management, 5(1).
- Esperanča, J.P., Paula A.G.M., Matias G., Mohammed A., & Gulumhussen. (2003). Corporate debt policy of small firms: An empirical (re)examination, *Journal of small business and enterprise development*, 10(1), 62-80.

- Fischer, E. O., Heinkel. R., & Zechner, J. (1989). Dynamic capital structure choice: Theory and tests. *The journal of finance* 44(1), 19-40.
- Friend, I. and Lang, L.H.P. (1988). An Empirical Test of the Impact of Managerial Self-interest on Corporate Capital Structure. Journal of Finance, 47, 271-281.
- Gitman, L. J. (2009). Principles of Managerial Finance, twelth edition.
- Goh, C. F., Tai, W. Y., Rasli, A., Tan, O. K., & Zakuan, N. (2018). The determinants of capital structure: Evidence from Malaysian companies. *International Journal of Supply Chain Management*, 7(3), 225-230.
- Golam M. (2014) Use of CAMEL Model: A Study on financial performance of selected Commercial Banks in Bangladesh. Universal *Journal of Accounting and Finance* 2(5): 151-160, 2014
- Goldstein, R., Ju, N., & Leland, H. (2001). An EBIT-based model of dynamic Capital Structure. *The journal of business* 74(4), 483-512.
- Goyal, A. (2013). The impact of capital structure on performance of Listed Public Sector Banks in India. *International Journal of Business and Management Invention*, 2(10), 35-43.
- Graham, J. R. (199). Risk reduction Ada managerial motive for conglomerate mergers. *The bell journal of Economics*, 605-617.
- Green, O.J., Murinde. V., & Suppakitjarak. (2002). Corporate financial Structure in *India*; finance and development working paper, No. 43 May.
- Gupta, PK. (2014), An analysis of Indian public sector banks using CAMEL approach. IOSR *Journal of Business and Management*, 16, 94-102.
- Hall, G., Hutchinson, P., & Michaelus, N. (2004). Determinant of the Capital Structures of European SMEs. *Journal of business finance and accounting* 31(5-6), 711-728.
- Harris, M., &Rauiv, A. (1991). The theory of capital structure. *The journal of finance* 46(1), 297-355.
- Hassan, S., Muhammed, A., & Muzzammil, H. (2014). Effect of Profitability and Financial Leverage on Capital Structure in Pakistan textile firms. *Arabian Journal of Business and Management* Review Vol., 6. Issue 4.
- Heshmati, A. (2001). *The Dynamics of Capital Structure*: Evidence from Swedish micro and small firms. SSE/EFI working paper series in economics and finance.
- Idode, P. E., Adeleke, T. M., Ogunlowore, A. J., & Ashogbon, O. S. (2014). Influence of capital structure on profitability: Empirical Evidence from listed Nigerian banks. *Journal of Business and Management*, 16(11), 22-28.

- Ihenetu, H. I., Iwo, S., & Ebiware, A. E. (2016). Impact of capital structure on the performance of deposit Money banks (A case study of selected money banks in Nigeria) ILARD *International Economics business Management* ISSN 2489-0065 Vol. 2 No 7.
- Jensen, M. & Meckling, W. (1976) Theory of the firm, managerial behavior, agency costs and ownership structure. *Journal of Financial Economics*, 3, pp. 305-360.
- Jensen, M. C. (1986). Agency cost of free cash flow corporate finance and Takeovers. American Economic Review.
- Jensen, M. C., & Meckling, W. H. (1976). Theory of the firms: management development behavior agency costs and ownership structure. *Journal of financial Economics*, Vol3, pp.305-360
- Jenson, M., & Ruback. R. (1983). Market for corporate control: the scientific evidence, Journal of financial Economics, Cool. 11, pop. 5-50.
- Johnson, S. A. (1997). An empirical analysis of the determinants of corporate debt ownership structure. *Journal of Financial and quantitative analysis* 32(1), 47-69.
- Kale, J. R., Noe, T. H., & Ramirez, G. G. (1991). The effect of business risk on corporate capital structure: Theory and evidence. *The journal finance* 46(5), 1693-1715.
- Kane, A., Marcus, A. J., Mc Donald, R. L. (1984). How big is the tax advantage to debt? *The Journal of finance* 39(3), 841-853.
- Kochhar, R. (1996). Explaining firm capital structure: The role of agency theory VS transaction cost Economics. *Strategic management journal*, 713-728.
- Kraus, A., & Litzenberger, R. H. (1973). A state-preference model of optimal financial leverage. *The journal of finance*, 28(4), 911-922.
- Kuria, F. B. (2013). The effect of capital structure on the financial performance of commercial banks in Kenya. *Unpublished, University of Nairobi*.
- Lliana G. C., Mihail N.D. & Evangelos T. C. (2015) Performance of the Greek banking sector pre and throughout the financial crisis Mega Publishing Limited. *Journal of Risk & Control*, 2015, 2(1), 45-69 December 1, 2015
- Madiha, G. & Muhammed, R (2016). Impact of Capital Structure on Banks Performance: Empirical Evidence from Pakistan. *Journal of Economics and Sustainable Development*, 7(1), 32-38.
- Malihe R. (2015) CAMELS's Analysis in Banking Industry. Global journal of engineering science and research management. 2(11): 10-26

- Marsh, P. (1982). The dynamics of Capital Structure: Evidence from Swedish micro and small firms SSE/EFI working paper series in Economics and Finance.
- Marsh, P. (1982). The choice between equity and debt: An empirical study. *The journal of finance37(1)*, 121-144.
- Mathewos, W. (2016). The Impact of Capital Structure on Financial Performance of Commercial Banks in Ethiopia. Global Journal of Management and Business Research: C Finance, 43-52.
- Michaelas, N., & Chittenden, F. (1999). Financial policy and capital structure choice in UK SMEs: Empirical evidence from company panel data. *Small business economics* 12(2), 113-130.
- Mishra, S.K. & Aspal P.K. (2013): A Camel model analysis of state Bank Group. World *Journal of Social Sciences*, 3(4), 36 55
- Modigliani & H. Miller. (1963). Corporate income taxes and the cost of capital: A Correction. *The American Economic* Review, 53(3), 433-443.
- Mohammad, Z., Muzaffa, S., Ammar, Ali, G & Muhammad, Y. R. (2013). Impact of capital structure on banking performance (A case study of Pakistan), *Interdisciplinary journal of contemporary Research in Business* 10(4).
- Mohammadzadeha, M., Rahimia, F., Rahimib, F., Aarabic, S. M., & Salamzadeha, J. (2013). The Effect of Capital Structure on the Profitability of Pharmaceutical Companies The Case of Iran. Services Iranian Journal of Pharmaceutical Research, 12(3), 573-577.
- Moore, W. T. (1986). Asset composition, bankruptcy costs, and the firms choice of capital structure. *Quarterly Review of Economics and Business*, 26(4), 51-61.
- Mouna, A., Jianmu, Y., Havidz, S. A. H., & Ali, H. (2017) The impact of capital structure on Firms performance in Morocco.
- Muhfuzah & Raj (2012). Capital structure and firm performance: Evidence from Malaysian Listed Companies. Procedia Social and Behavioral Sciences. 65. 156–166. 10.1016/j.sbspro.2012.11.105.
- Murinde, V., Agung, J., & Mullineux, A. (2004). Patterns of corporate financing and financial system convergence in Europe. *Review of International Economics*, 12(4), 693-705.
- Muritala, T. A. (2018). An empirical analysis of capital structure on firms' performance in Nigeria. International *Journal of Advances in Management and Economics*. ISSN: 2278-3369
- Myers, S. (1977). Determinant of corporate borrowing. *Journal of Financial Economics* 5(2), 147-175

- Myers, S. C. (1984). The capital structure puzzle. The journal of finance, 39(3), 574-592.
- Myers, S. C. (1993). Still searching for optimal capital structure. Journal of applied corporate finance, 6(1), 4-14.
- Ndifon, O. E., & Ubana, U. I. (2014). The impact of Capital Adequacy on deposit money banks profitability in Nigeria. Research Journal of Finance and Accounting, 5(12), 7-15.
- Nenu, E., Vintilă, G., & Gherghina, Ş. (2018). The impact of capital structure on risk and firm performance: Empirical evidence for the Bucharest stock exchange listed companies. *International Journal of Financial Studies*, 6(2), 41.
- Ogebe, P., Ogebe, J., & Alewi, K. (2013). The Impact of Capital Structure on Firms' Performance in Nigeria. MPRA Paper No. 46173,
- Olanrewaju, O.M., Sande, J. O. (2016). An empirical Analysis of capital adequacy determinant in Nigerian Banking Sector. *International journal of Economics and Finance* 8(12), 132.
- Olokoyo, F. O. (2012). Capital Structure and Corporate Performance of Nigerian Quoted Firms. A Panel Data Approach. Published Ph. D Thesis presented to the Department of Banking and Finance, School of Business, College of Development Studies, Covenant University, Ota, Ogun State Nigeria.
- Onaolapo A. & Kajola, O. (2010). Capital structure and firm performance: Evidence from Nigeria. *European Journal of Economics, Finance and Administrative Sciences*. 70-82.
- Onaolapo, A. A., Kajola, S. O., & Nwidobie M. B. (2015). Determinants of capital structure: A study of Nigerian quoted companies. *European Journal of Business and Management*, 7, 23.
- Owolabi, S. & Inyang U., (2012). Determinant of capital structure in the Nigerian firms. *A theoretical review eCanadaian journal of Accounting and finance* volume .1, issue 1.(Pp7-15)/2012
- Pandey, Indra Mohan, Capital Structure and the Firm Characterstics: Evidence from an Emerging Market (October 2001). IIMA Working Paper No. 2001-10-04. Available at SSRN: https://ssrn.com/abstract=300221
- Pandy.I.M. (2001). Financial Management, Vikas publishing house(pvt)ltd. 342-374
- Petersen, M. A., & Rajan, R. G. (1994). The benefits of lending relationships: Evidence from small business data. *The journal of finance*, 49(1), 3-37.
- Rajan, R. G., & Zingales, L. (1995). What do we know about capital structure? Some evidence from international data. *The journal of Finance*, 50(5), 1421-1460.

- Rasheed, M. Y. (2012). 'Impact of Capital Structure on Firms. Financial Performance: Evidence from Pakistan'', Research Journal of Finance and Accounting, 3(9).
- Saeed, M. M, Gull, A. A. & Rasheed, M.Y (2013). Impact of Capital Structure on Banking Performance (A Case Study of Pakistan). *Interdisciplinary Journal of Contemporary Research in Business*. 4(10), 393-403.
- Salim, M & Yadau, R (2012) Capital Structure and Firm Performance: Evidence from Malaysia listed companies. International congress on interdisciplinary Business and Social Science. *Procedia Social and behavioral Science*65 (2012), 156-166.
- Schargrodsky, E. (2002). The Effect of Product Market Competition on Capital Structure: Empirical Eivdence form the Newspapaer Industry. *Harvard Dissertation*.
- Schargrodsky, E. S. (2002). The effect of product market competition on capital structure: Empirical evidence from the newspaper industry. *Centro de Investigaciones Financieras (CIF)*. *Documentos de trabajo* 04/2002.
- Schwartz, A. (1984). Continuing puzzle of secured debt, Vand. L.Rev.37, 1051.
- Sebastian.O, & Rapuluchukwu.U. (2012). "Impact of capital Structure and Liquidity on corporate return in Nigrria evidence from manufacturing firms", International journal of academic research in accounting finance and management science,2(3). 1-16
- Shaba, Y., Yaaba, B. N., & Abubakar, P. I. (2016). Capital Structure and Profitability of Deposit Money Banks: Empirical Evidence from Nigeria. *European Journal of Business and Management 23 (8) IW*.
- Shubita, M. F., & Alsawalhah, J. M. (2012). The relationship between capital structure and profitability. *International Journal of Business and Social Science*, *3*(16).
- Shubita, M. F., & Alsawalhah J. M. (2012). The relationship between capital structure and profitability. *International Journal of business and social science* 3(16).
- Shum, P.M. (1996). Taxes and corporate debt policy Canada: an empirical investigation. *Canadian journal of Economics*, 556-572.
- Simerly, R. L. & Li, M., (2002). Environmental dynamism, capital structure and innovation: an empirical test. *The international journal of organizational analysis*, 10(2), 156-171.
- Soberly, R., & Li, R. (2002). Environmental dynamism, Capital Structure and innovation: An empirical test. *The international Analysis* 10(2), 156-171.
- Sodiq, A., Wilbricht, L., & Pinegar. J. (1989). Capital structure theory: a survey. *Financial management*, 82-91.

- Stiglitz, J. (1973). Taxation, corporate financial policy, and the cost of capital. *Journal of public Economics* 2(1), 1-34.
- Strebulaev, I. A. (2007).Do test of capital structure theory mean what they say. *The journal of finance* 62(4), 1747-1787.
- Titman, S., & Wessels, R. (1988). The determinant of capital structure choice, *journal of finance*, 43(1), 1-19
- Wald, J. K. (199). How firm characteristics affect Capital Structure: An International comparison. *Journal of financial Research* 22(2), 161-187.
- Wedig, G., Sloan, F. A., Hassan.M., & Morrisey, M. A. (1988). Capital structure, ownership and Capital payment policy: The case of hospitals. *The journal of finance* 43(1)21-41.
- Wiwattanakantang, Y., 1999. An empirical study on the determinants of the capital structure of Thai firms, Pacific-Basin Finance Journal 7,371-403.
- Yakuba, S., Baba, N., & Yaaba, I. A.(2016). Capital structure and profitability of deposit money banks: Empirical Evidence from Nigeria. Masters thesis.
- Yinusa, O. G., & Babalola, Y. A. (2012). The impact of corporate governance on capital structure decision of Nigeria firms. *Journal in organizational psychology and educational studies*, 1(2), 121-128.
- Zabri, S. M. (2012). The determinants of capital structure among SMEs in Malaysia. In *Proceedings International Conference of Technology Management, Business and Entrepreneurship* (Vol. 2010, pp. 132-146).